

RYDE HUNTERS HILL DISTRICT HOCKEY CLUB INC.

Annual Report Season 2018

Table of Contents

Table of Contents	2
Ryde Hunters Hill District Hockey Club Inc	3
Office Bearers for 2018 Season:	4
Award Winners	5
President's Report	
Financial Report	12
Women's President's Report	
Men's President's Report	
Juniors President's Report	19
Director of Coaching	22
Functions and Events	24
Sponsorship	25
Facilities	
Women's Masters Report	27
Men's Masters Report	29
Team Reports – Women's	32
Team Reports – Men's	37
Women's League Tables	46
Men's League Tables	49
Masters League Tables	52
Juniors' League Tables	53
Men's Records	56
Women's Records	61



Ryde Hunters Hill District Hockey Club Inc.

PAST PRESIDI	ENTS	PAST WOMENS PRESIDEN	TS (pre 1993)
1950-53	Hugh Cullen*	1987	Rae Morris
1954-57	Arthur Young*	1988	Lyn Cullen
1958-59	Harold Gralton	1989-93	Una Mansell
1960	Robert Bruce		
1961-70	Gough Young*		
1971-72	Rod Armstrong	PAST TREASURERS	
1973-74	David Niven	1977	Mick Goodwin/ John
1075 7/	Polo Pooyee*	1978	Rock
1975-76 1977	Bob Reeves* Ron Jones	1979-80	John Rock Terry Cox
1978	Howard Campey	1981-82	Phil Retford
1979-80	Peter Buckham	1983-84	Phil Parsons
1981-82	Graham Cox	1985	Pat Keating
1983-84	Paul Stapleton	1986-88	David Hanna
1985-92	Maurice Dawson	1989-	Andrew Ramsay
1993	Jeff McEwen		,
1994	Charles Calleja		
1995-96	Maurice Dawson	*Deceased	
1997-98	Glen Castensen		
1999-16	Maurice Dawson		
2017-	Glen Castensen	LIFE MEMBERS	5
		Arthur Young*	Ron Vine
DACT CECOET	ADIFC	Joe Barrett*	Gordon Fox
PAST SECRET 1977-78	Maurice Dawson	Allen Reece*	Graham Cox
1977-76	Graham Cox	Keith Jeffery* Hugh Cullen*	Terry Cox Terry Reece
1981-82	Phil Besanvalle	Gough Young*	Judy Goosakoff
1983	David Modra	Keith Thompson*	Rae Morris
1984-85	David Hanna	David Niven	Warren Campey*
1986	Graham Cox	Maurice Dawson	Julie Reid
1987-90	Steve Merchant	Gwen Sullman	Andrew Ramsay
1991-92	Micheal Gunner	Colin Cullen	Phil Retford
1993	Micheal Gunner/ John Philip	Phillip Goosakoff	Matt McKay
1994-96	Micheal Gunner	Jenny Dawson	Ken Campbell
1997-01	Ken Campbell	Gary McKay	David Goosakoff
2002-03	Peter Murray	Ray Phelps	Steve Merchant
2004-09	Micheal Gunner	Ron Jones	Micheal Gunner
2010-12	Gerald de Waal	Jeff McEwen	John Cullen
2013-14	Scott Familton	Peter Cox	Marnee McKay
2015-16	Jacqui Herron	Michelle Giaquinto	Brad Parkes
2017-	Meg Smith	John Booth AM	



Office Bearers for 2018 Season:

PATRONS

John Booth AM Victor Dominello MP

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

CLUB PRESIDENT: Glen Castensen
ADMINISTRATION DIRECTOR: Meg Smith
FINANCE DIRECTOR: Andrew Ramsay

OFFICE BEARERS

MEN's PRESIDENT:

WOMEN'S PRESIDENT:

James Stephens

Kate Cade

JUNIORS' PRESIDENT:

COACHING DIRECTOR:

FACILITIES PRESIDENT:

SPONSORSHIP COORDINATOR:

Renee Dawson

FUNCTIONS & EVENTS COORDINATOR: Chris Coleman

CLUB CAPTAINS

JUNIORS Georgia Graham / Aaron Pereira

WOMEN'S : Kiona Nicholl / Erin Kelly
MEN'S : Ben Craig/ Steve Besanvalle

AUDITOR:

ADVISORY BOARD: Charles Calleja, Jeff McEwen

CANTEEN & UNIFORMS: Alison Keogh
CLUB ADMINISTRATOR: Jess Dobbin
COACHING COORDINATOR (Juniors): Greg Findlay

CORPORATE OFFICE: Glen Castensen, Ben Craig

EQUIPMENT OFFICER:

IT MANAGER:

MASTERS COORDINATOR (Men):

MASTERS COORDINATOR (Women):

Pippa Quilty

MINKIES COORDINATOR: Maurice Dawson, Drew Parker

NORTH AREA DELEGATE: Stephen MacMillan
PANTHER ELITE PERFORMANCE UNIT: Tim Collier, Glen Castensen

REGISTRATION CO-ORDINATOR (Junior): Alison Keogh

RECORDS OFFICERS: Scott Familton / Michael Gunner SELECTION COORDINATORS: Dean Merchant, Michael Gunner

SOCIAL MEDIA MANAGER:

WEBMASTER:

UMPIRES COORDINATOR (Women's):

David Moore
Shaun Dobbin
Shelly Tate

The Committee also acknowledges all coaches and managers appointed in 2018.



Award Winners

Club Awards

Pop Reece Trophy (Men's best and Fairest) - Tomek Bruml
Judy Goosakoff Trophy (Women's Best & Fairest) - Lara Erasmus, Julia Parker
Colin Manning Trophy (Men's Leading Goal Scorer) - Ranjit Singh (23 Goals)
Women's Leading Goal Scorer (Kirsten Pearce Trophy) - Abby Wilson (25 Goals)
Best and Fairest Male Goal Keeper - Brodie Denson
Best & Fairest Women's Goal Keeper - Georgia Graham
Gwen Sullman / Maurice Dawson Trophy (Club Person of the Year) - Dean Merchant, David Moore
Umpire of the Year - Jay Blamey

Women's Best and Fairest

ANZAC Coach of the Year - Andy Duggan

1st Grade Women – Boudine van der Pois 2nd Grade Women – Layla Riley 3rd Grade Women – Georgia Graham, Nicole Farquharson 4th Grade Women – Lara Erasmus 5th Grade Women – Astrid Cobby 6th Grade Women – Melissa Armstrong 7th Grade Women – Julia Parker

Men's Best and Fairest

1st Grade Men – Ben Craig
2nd Grade Men – Tomek Bruml
3rd Grade Men – Shaun Dobbin
4th Grade Men – Joseph Blackburn
5th Grade Men – Mark Greaves
6th Grade Men – Amaan Naqvi
7th Grade Men – Stephen Burns
8th Grade Men – Simon Tan
9th Grade Men – Charles Calleja
10th Grade Men – Aaron Scott, Rory Woods

Masters Best and Fairest

Masters A – Alex Jones
Masters B – Justin Wicks
Masters C – Mark Richard
Masters D – Peter Buckham

Juniors

John Cullen Junior Sports Person of the Year – **Ellen Campey** Junior Club Person of the Year – **Sebastien Butler** Coach of the Year – **Paul Levett** Maurice Dawson Minkey Encouragement Award – **Tamsyn Kemsley**



President's Report

It's been a great honour and my absolute pleasure to be your Club President. This year provided a pivotal moment in the Club's history with the announcement in July regarding our relocation and securing of a second field. While there is still much work to do, I would particularly like to thank the NSW Office of Sport, Ryde Council and the NSW Government with special mention to our hardworking local MPs **Victor Dominello** and **Anthony Roberts**.

OFF-FIELD TEAM

As I have said many times before the hardest working team in the Club is management. I would like to give a special thanks to this year's management team consisting of **Kate Cade**, **Chris Coleman**, **Renee Dawson**, **Larry McIntosh**, **Kirrily Pereira**, **Andrew Ramsay**, **Meg Smith**, **James Stephens and Phil Welsman**.

I would also like to thank a number of others for their significant contribution via working groups and associated supporting roles including: Steve Besanvalle, Charles Calleja, Tim Collier, Ben Craig, Shaun Dobbin, Jess Dobbin, Steve Dunn, Scott Familton, Sophie Leijer, Bruce Farquharson, Greg Findley, David Goosakoff, Gary Goosakoff, Mick Gunner, Erin Kelly, Alison Keogh, Darcy Keogh, John Cullen, Stuart Farquharson, Kenny Campbell, Jeff McEwen, Matt McKay, Narian Singh, Dean Merchant, David Moore, Muz, Kiona Nicholl, Drew Parker, Pippa Quilty, Brendan Lavery, Mark Butler, Alice Calleja, Gina Rees, Mark Ellis, Bernard Moore, Kirsty O'Sullivan, Craig Shaw, Steve MacMillian, Mark Richard, Rob Whelan, Ben Willson, Andy Duggan, Georgia Graham, Mikaela Chops Patterson, Bubbles Arthur and Maurie Dawson. Thank you all for your outstanding contributions and dedication.

Thanks also to our Club Captain: Steve Besanvalle, Ben Craig, Georgie Graham, Erin Kelly, Kiona Nicholl, Mikaela Patterson and Aaron Pereira.

For those who aren't continuing in your role – I wish you the best and hope your return to assist the Club in another capacity when able. With that said – I would particularly like to congratulate **David Moore** and **Dean Merchant** for winning the highly prestigious **Gwen Sullman** & **Maurie Dawson Club Person of the Year Award** and equally, **Sebastien Butler** for winning the **Junior Club Person of the Year**. I thank them all for their significant contributions this year and many years of outstanding service.

ON-FIELD SEASON

This season we fielded **37 teams** (ex-Minkies) across Women and Men's Seniors, Juniors and Masters. That is the most teams fielded by any Club in Sydney and again makes us one of the largest hockey clubs in Australia.

I wish to sincerely congratulate and thank all the coaches, managers, assistants, umpires, coordinators, selectors, canteen staff, ball persons, general helpers and supporters – for without your major contributions and commitment throughout the season there would be no sport for us all to enjoy.

Massive congratulations to all the players who took the field this year. Well done to all the players who won awards with special mention to Lara Erasmus & Julia Parker and Tomek Bruml for taking out the prestigious Judy Goosakoff and Pop Reece trophies respectively.

This season of our 37 teams we had:

- 25 or 66% of teams across the entire Club make their respective finals
- Of those, 17 teams or 68% of the team in the finals or 46% of total teams went on to make their Grand Final



• Of those, 9 or 53% of the teams that made their GF or 24% of our total teams went on to become MAJOR premiers (5 Juniors and 4 Seniors).

I would particularly like to congratulate our Premiership winning teams on their outstanding season:

- 13 Panthers coached by Carol Jones and assistant coach Sebastien Butler (minor & major premiers)
- 15 Tigers coached by Michael Papadakis and assistant coaches Reghyn Harrison & Will Papadakis (minor & major premiers)
- 15 Lions coached by Duncan Taylor and assistant coach Joe Blackburn (minor & major premiers)
- 17 Tigers coached by Teaj Sian (undefeated minor & major premiers)
- 17 Lions coached by Paul Levett and assistant coach Kate Cade (undefeated minor & major premiers)
- Men's 8th grade for their undefeated year and premiership coached by Mark Richards and Duncan Taylor
- Men's 7th grade for their dominating premiership after 3 GF prior losses coached by Ken Campbell and Teaj Sian
- Men's 5th grade for their great turnaround season and GF victory coached by Steve
 Besanvalle and Sam Braid
- Men's Master B for their remarkable GF victory coached by Tim Metcalfe.

I would also like to acknowledge the prior contribution of many others particularly past coaches, players, managers and supporters that laid the foundation for these glorious premierships. Thank you.

ON-FIELD REPRESENTATIVE ELITE

It's been our finest year (and we thought last year was!) for representative hockey with some amazing achievements. It is great to see the Club's significant investment in coaching and player development over recent years translating into many of our players reaching elite levels. As a result, we had:

- Over 40 State representative players across the Club
- 10 players in the U21s State Nationals Championships
- 11 players in the Senior AHL teams
- Numerous players in the **NSW Masters teams** at Nationals
- 2 players in the Australian Combined High Schools team
- 2 players in the National Futures Group
- 5 players in the National Junior u21s squad
- 4 players in Senior Australian Development Squad



- 1 player in the Australian Country team and a number in National Masters teams
- 5 players in Senior National Teams.

As per last year, our players played throughout Australia and travelled the globe from India, South Africa, South America, Europe, UK, Japan, China and NZ. Congratulations to all of you. A good problem to have is it is now not practicable to name all of you in this opening report. However, I would like to make special mention (in addition to our current seniors national players of Kirsten Pearce, Mikki "Chops®" Patterson, Tim Brand, Tom Craig and Lachi Sharp) – of Morgan Blamey, Andrea Gillard and Abby Wilson for their selection in the Australian U21s; Hayden Dillon for selection in the Junior National Development team; Tom Brown and Sam Gray for debuting for the NSW State AHL team; Jack Pickering and Tom Brown and Sam Gray and Hayden Dillon playing in India in front of 18,000 fans; Kieron Arthur for his continued solid performances with the Australian Development Squad; Hannah Kable and Grace Young for their selection in the National Futures Squad; and Grace Young at the Youth Olympics. Special mention also to Lachi Sharp and Tom Craig for their brilliant GOLD at the Commonwealth Games, and then later with Tim Brand their awesome GOLD at the Champions Trophy. Also, special congratulations to Muz and Alex Jones for their respective GOLDS at the Masters World Cup in Spain.

Finally, well done to Lachi Sharp for taking out the Club's inaugural Representative Player of the Year Award. It's well deserved with his "white hot" year including: Kookaburra debut, Commonwealth Games GOLD, Champions Trophy GOLD, Sultan Cup GOLD, and World League Series GOLD.

SPECIAL MENTIONS

At the risk of forgetting to mention someone/something important (sorry if I do miss you) – I strongly believe the following warrant special mention:

- Meg Smith and Andy Ramsay for your hard work, massive commitment, support and care
 as part of the Club Executive. It's been a pleasure working together again this year as
 part of the Club's Executive Team.
- **Brad Parkes** for reaching an incredible 1000 career senior games during the year. An absolutely amazing achievement with not many passes but plenty of goals!
- Andy Duggan for his outstanding work in developing the Keepers coaching program,
 which was also acknowledge with him being awarded Club Senior Coach of the Year.
- James Stephen and Mark Richard with great leadership as respective Presidents of Men's Seniors and Men's Masters – with all 14 teams making the finals.
- To all our 13 **#PantherPride** recipients for 2018. Thank you all for your significant contributions to making our Club even greater.
- All the members (young and old) that got involved in our Working Bees this year. While
 often overlooked these activities are so vital for the successful operation of your home
 ground Facility.
- David Moore for his outstanding work on promoting the Club on social media.
- **Meg Smith** and **Charles Calleja** for their many hours drafting our new "proposed" Club Constitution. This task has been a major undertaking and a crucial objective to ensure our Club's "framework" remains on a solid foundation.



- Thanks to **Andrew Ramsay** and **Greg Findley** for their work in the upgrading of our field fencing earlier this year.
- **Jack Cullen** for an absolutely standout performance in Men's 3rd Grade preliminary final.
- **Kirsten Pearce**, **Ben and Tom Craig**, **Sam Liles**, **Tim Brand and Lachi Sharp** for your dedication to the Club from afar. Most times I know you are a long way away with a primary focus on national teams or OS priorities. However, please never underestimate our appreciation of your promotion of the Club and when able your appearances (whether that be a junior presentation event, coaching clinic or club match) when returning back in town. We also greatly appreciate your "behind the scenes" counsel during the year and your "chaperoning" of our debutants during the commencement of their respective representative journeys.
- **Kieron "Bubbles" Arthur** for his commitment to the Club, drive and inspirational work ethic.
- **Scott Familton** for his massive contribution and programming efforts on the Club's Registration and Record system.
- Jess Dobbin for her outstanding work in her 1st year as Club Administrator.
- Larry McIntosh, Gina Rees, Greg Findley, Dean Merchant, Matt McKay, Tim Collier and others for their continued pursuit of excellence with our coaching development framework across the Club.
- **Dean Merchant** and **Mick Gunner** for their massive contribution implementing the revolutionise match card system in our inaugural year of using it.
- Mark Butler for being the Junior teamapp guru, setting up all Juniors, guardians, coaches & managers and resolving user issues all year.
- Chris Coleman, Meg Smith, Bec Dawson, Renee Dawson, Alison Keogh, Kirrily Pereira and team for organising Family Day, Junior Presentation, and the Senior Presentation Night. Some of our best events ever.
- **Ellen Campey** for an absolutely standout performance in the u17 metro Grand Final and for being award our John Cullen Junior Sports Person of the Year.
- Jay Blamey who was awarded Club Umpire of the Year.
- **Kirrily Pereira** for her outstanding work as Junior President.
- Paul Levett for his massive efforts and being award the Junior Coach of the Year.
- Maurie Dawson and Drew Parker for their continued work developing our youngest and newest members in the Minkey Development Programme.
- Congrats to former Club Captain and 1st Grade Men's Captain **Billy Shaw** who come back from Brisbane to play his 100th Men's 1st Grade match during the season.
- Our 3 heroes of Tim Brand, Tom Craig and Lachi Sharp for GOLD at the Champions Trophy.
 What amazing journeys and achievements.
- Conversely, just commencing, Tamsyn Kemsley for being awarded the Maurice Dawson Minkey Encouragement Award.



And, last but not least – the sad news of a number of our past members passing during the
year including Brynn Furmidge, Ron Vine (Life Member) and Jonny Gibbons. Condolences
and love to their families and friends. They will not be forgotten.

FOCUS FOR 2019 AND BEYOND

I plan to seek re-election at this year's AGM (7 December) and do so under the same "platform" I outlined in the prior years of:

- 1. We are not just competing against other clubs but other sports;
- 2. A club with a home ground turf facility has many material advantages over those Clubs that don't:
- 3. Over the long term a club with a lack of juniors will not survive;
- 4. Having a winning culture is good for a club and its members;
- 5. Players (regardless of what grade they play, their age or how long they have been playing for) still desire to be better players and want to learn;
- 6. Coaches (regardless of what grade they coach, their age or how long they have been coaching for) still desire to be better coaches and want to learn;
- 7. Having strong 1st grades teams are good for members and the club;
- 8. Seeing fellow players develop into elite players and playing at the highest level is good for a club and its members;
- 9. People desire to be part of something bigger than themselves and are drawn towards a culture that is transparent, inclusive, fair, non-discriminatory, profitable and social; and
- 10. The more people that regularly assist a club, the more enjoyable it is to be part of; the less personal opportunity cost there is for those actively involved; and the more sustainable that Club becomes.

TO CONCLUDE

Thank you for being a part of the Club. Please don't wait for others to do the work and "heavy-lifting". Engage. Share the workload. Be part of the conversation and enjoy.

Special thanks to our Club Patrons for their continued support - **John Booth AM** of the "The Weekly Times" AND our Ryde State Member (and Minister for Finance, Services and Property), **Victor Dominello.**

I thank our Federal Member **John Alexander**, Ryde Councillors **Roy Maggio** and **Penny Pederson** for their continued interest, care and support for the Club. Thanks also to **David Thompson** and his team at HNSW, and the **NSW Office of Sport** for their hard work and commitment to the future of hockey and our Club.

Special thanks to our Major sponsors **Momento Hospitality Group** (owner of the Governor Hotel) and **CBC NSW** (owners of Hillsbus). Many thanks all of our "**Club Community Supporters**" particularly: Foxtel, Chatswood RSL, Hockey NSW, HockeyZone, Just Hockey, Lunchtimes Legends,



MC Hockey Skill Set, Plus Fitness Macquarie Park, Teams Sports, Watermatic Irrigation, VetMed and The Weekly Times.

My final thanks and wishes are to the parents, partners, family, friends, lost loved ones and pets – who supported us during this season. I hope you and your family have a safe holiday season and a wonderful New Year. Thanks again for your participation, support and passion. If there is any aspect of this report, you would like to discuss further please don't hesitate to email me on qlen.castensen@rydehockey.com.au.

Next year will mark our 85th year. We look to celebrating this important milestone with you as it will no doubt be the "Year of the Panther!"

Good night Benny and Samo. See you all in 2019!

Yours in Hockey

Glen Castensen

Club President



Financial Report

Kindly note - to protect the interests of the Club due to the confidential nature of the information, the underlying financials (Profit and Loss Statement and Balance Sheet and any further analysis) will only be provided to members at the AGM.

When reviewing the figures for the year we provide the following commentary on the **Profit & Loss Statement**:

- Generally, most line items were as budgeted (ie as expected) with the additional comments being:
- On Income Overall increase up 2% as expected
 - Canteen (is 9% of total rev) ~ revenue up 20% due to the introduction of additional items & merchant facility
 - o Grants (5%) ~ For the fencing repairs
 - o Parking (20%)~ revenue down 3% due timing of invoices but as expected
 - Social Functions (3%) ~ revenue down 29% due to lower attendance at presentation night plus some tickets purchased in November 2018
 - Subscription fees (41%) ~ only slight increase 2% but as expected
 - Turf hire (19%) ~ revenue down 12% due to lower usage for training from outside clubs.
- On Expense Overall increase down 6% (or up 3% ex amort) as expected
 - o Admin (is 2% of total exp) ~ costs down 48% due to lower costs than budgeted.
 - o Amortisation (10%) ~ costs down 48% as expected due to final write-off of assets.
 - Assoc fees (28%) ~ costs down 12% as expected
 - o Coaching (12%) ~ figure as per last year and as expected
 - Equipment (2%) ~ costs substantial increase due to some additional one-off video equipment purchased
 - o Light. Power, Heating (8%) ~ costs down 24% due new discounts negotiated
 - o Rep Subs (3%) ~ costs down 8% with lower expenses for rep team costs
 - Repair and Maintenance (13%) ~ Significantly higher due to major lighting and fencing repairs
 - o Social events (3%) ~ costs down 20% due lower numbers
 - o Uniforms (3%) ~ costs down 27% less merchandise sales
 - Water (3%) ~ costs up >200% as expected due to timing.
- As a result, a Net Profit was generated of approximately \$39k (vs \$10k in 2017) as expected.



When reviewing the figures for the year, we provide the following commentary on the **Balance Sheet**:

Generally, most items were as planned with the additional comments being:

• On Assets

- o Fixed assets remain unchanged (less the scheduled annual amortisation)
- o No new major assets

On Debt

o Nil borrowings

• Future Capex (wanting to flag)

- o Field relocation plus additional field our contribution unknown currently
- o Turf resurfacing we would hope will not be needed prior to relocation
- o Some existing Clubhouse repairs still required subject to timing

Please note, the above commentary is presented here to provide a general summary and highlight significant items and/or outcomes. Approximates and rounding have been used. The above figures are not meant to represent all movements in the P&L and Balance Sheets.

To conclude, the FY2018 financial results were solid with the the overall financial position of the Club as expected. Please note, the Auditor's Report will be handed out with the underlying financials. Furthermore, we are more than happy to discuss any aspect of this report, as well as answer any other financial questions at the AGM.

Andrew Ramsay

Finance Director



Women's President's Report

In 2018, the Ryde Women fielded seven teams, five in the SWHL competition and two in the Sydney North competition. Although the results from the season did not put our teams at the top of the tables, all teams fought competitively. All players, coaches, and managers should be extremely proud of their efforts this season.

We had a number of our players selected into representative teams up to international level and with our high performance coaching team we aim to continue this success. One of my goals for the season was for every team to have two coaches and a manager to ensure that all teams had access to great coaches. We achieved this with every team (except 2nd grade). This is an outstanding effort by all our volunteer coaches and managers and the effect on the players was noticeable. We are lucky to have such strong coaching support for the Women's team. The introduction of mid-season performance reviews provided a great forum for players, coaches and managers to discuss progress and identify any areas for improvement during the season and we will look to continue these next season.

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2019

We received a large amount of feedback from players, coaches and managers from the midseason reviews undertaken with each team and the end of season coaches and managers' review. Undertaking these reviews not only had an immediate effect on the teams themselves, simply by providing a forum for communicating and discussing any issues, but also produced some extremely valuable suggestions for improvements in the Club. We will be working towards develop strategies to implement as many of these suggestions as possible. Some areas we will focus on are:

- Coaching continuing to provide the women's teams with the best coaching support
 possible and providing those coaches with support. Aiming to get each team at least one
 session, incorporating both video and on-field coaching during the season from the Club's
 high performance coaches. We will also try to develop a high level coaching course during
 the off-season for those players who don't currently have access to this type of coaching
 (by reason of their inclusion in high level teams).
- Junior players recognising the importance of identifying junior players and improving their transition into senior hockey. To this end, it is important that there is a good balance between seasoned players and junior players. Currently we have an imbalance in 3rd and 4th grade and there is a need to identify past top-level players (1st and 4th grade) who could return to play for the Club in 3rd and 4th grade to provide the support to these junior players. We need all members to support the identification of these players so that we can encourage their return to playing.
- Culture aiming for better integration between all the grades including when possible 1st grade assistance with lower grades, combined grade training, request to SWHL for more Club days. Aiming for increased engagement between women's and men's teams including more Club days, and other ways to further enhance the profiles of our women players and teams.

THANKS

I'd like to thank all of those who volunteered their time to help this season and there were many... Our coaching team consisted of Gina Rees and Amauri Amat (1st grade), Ben Wilson (2nd grade), Mick Gunner and Stu Farquharson (3rd grade), Alex Shaw and James Stephens (4th grade), Gavin Hughes and Erin Kelly (5th and 7th grade), Dave Goosakoff and Ben Warton (6th grade), Ina Cadorin and Paula Martins de Oliveira (7th grade) with high performance coaching assistance provided by Larry Mackintosh, Tim Collier and John Cullen and goalie coaching by Andy Duggan. Our managers for the season were Tami Griffith (2nd grade), Trudy Green (4th grade), Erin Kelly (5th grade), Kasia Nowakowski (6th grade), Ros O'Sullivan (7th grade).



Our selectors included Mick Gunner, Gina Rees, Amauri Amat, Ben Wilson, Stuart Farquharson, Trudy Green and Sharon Coutts. Behind the scenes, Jess Dobbin provided invaluable administrative support, Shelley Tate co-ordinated the women's umpires, Kiona Nicholl and Erin Kelly were our Senior Club Captains and Sophie Leijer organised the Summer Hockey competition.

Please consider volunteering. There are many small tasks that require minimal time investment and we would love to have more of you involved.

I look forward to seeing you all back for the 2019 season.

Kate Cade

Women's President

Women's Results (Regular Season / Finals)

1st Grade (ML1) – 4th / Lost in Elimination Final

 2^{nd} Grade (ML2) – 5th

3rd Grade (ML3) – 10th

4th Grade (ML4) – 9th

5th Grade (ML5) – 8th

6th Grade (SNWHA - B Division) - 5th

7th Grade (SNWHA - C Division) – 9th

Ryde Women's Representative Honours 2018

NATIONAL HONOURS

Morgan Blamey - Australian U21 (Trans Tasman Series), Australian Juniors Squad Andrea Gillard - Australian U21, Australian Juniors Squad Michelle Giaquinto - Australian U21 Technical Official Hannah Kable - Australian All Schools Team, Australian Futures Squad Amanda Meech - Australian O35 and selection for Australian O40 (2019) Mikaela Patterson - Australian Hockeyroos Kirsten Pearce - New Zealand Black Sticks Abby Wilson - Australian U23 and Australian U21

STATE HONOURS

Morgan Blamey - NSW U21, NSW AHL Arrows squad Ina Cadorin - NSW O35
Letitia Cooper - NSW O40 (shadow)
Alex Crawford - NSW U18 Squad
Holly Dawson - NSW CIS and All Schools Opens
Nicola Farquharson - NSW U15 Squad, NSW CIS U16
Andrea Gillard - NSW U21
Georgia Graham - NSW CIS and All Schools Opens
Hannah Kable - NSW U18, NSW U21 Squad
Megan May - NSW U15 Squad
Amanda Meech - NSW O35
Zoe Newman - NSW U21



Michaela Patterson - NSW AHL Arrows Lexie Pickering - NSW U18, NSW U21 (Blues), NSW Opens School Team Layla Riley - NSW U15 (Blues) Abby Wilson - NSW AHL Arrows, NSW U21 Grace Young - NSW U18, NSW U21 Squad

AAP SELECTION HONOURS

Macy Carrothers, Holly Dawson, Ellen Campey, Georgia Graham, Hannah Kable, Lexie Pickering, Layla Riley, Grace Young



Men's President's Report

2018 was another successful year for the Men's club across all grades. The club achieved the incredible feat of having all 10 grades achieve finals appearances, a testament to the hard work of all the coaches, managers and support staff throughout the season. The widespread success of our teams resulted in the majority of 'Club Championships' across Sydney Hockey going to Ryde.

Special mentions must go to 5th, 6th, 7th, 8th and 10th Grade who all finished Minor Premiers at the end of the regular season. Additionally, 8th Grade (coached by Duncan Taylor) achieved the extremely rare PERFECT SEASON, winning an incredible 18/18 matches during the regular season – and going on to win the premiership.

The post-season weeks presented challenges as always, with many teams going down by single goal margins and falling agonisingly short of a Grand Final appearance. In all we had 3 teams go down in Elimination Finals and 4 go down in Preliminary Finals. Needless to say Ryde had a great showing throughout the finals once again.

On the positive side, Ryde tripled its premierships in 2018, with congratulations going to 5th, 7th and 8th Grade (See results below). Special mentions to the coaches and managers, Steve Besanvalle and Sam Braid, Teaj Sian and Ken Campbell, and Duncan Taylor for these tremendous results.

I would like to take the time to thank all of the coaches and managers who took on roles this year and did another wonderful job. As we know, without these people the Club would not run. I certainly appreciate all the time and effort that goes into putting a team on the park each week, and they should all be commended for delivering time and time again. Additionally, I would like to formally acknowledge the significant contribution of Dean Merchant in his role as chairman of selectors. Dean's effort on a weekly basis to manage team selections as well as help manage and play in his own team was enormous. His service to the Club this year was simply above and beyond.

SOME CHALLENGES AND GOALS

Like always we should strive to improve as a Club year on year and there are a few areas to give more attention to next season:

- Finals management. This is an area of significance for our Club, as not only do we field the most amount of teams in Sydney, but also we are extremely successful. With all ten grades in finals this year, combined with some untimely unavailability of players as well as a schedule placing games in multiple times/locations, it was certainly a challenge to have the depth available to assist during these weeks.
- Continuing the exposure/integration of our juniors into the senior ranks. Providing
 opportunity to athletes to transition into Men's hockey. This is one of the best parts of being
 in the biggest Club in Australia and we should embrace the diversity we have across all
 grades. This can be utilised for personal development both on and off the field.

Once again, I would like to thank all involved in the Men's teams this year, one I believe has been highly successful across the board. I trust everyone will enjoy the off-season and come back ready to go in 2019.

James Stephens

Men's President

Men's Results (Regular Season / Finals)

1st Grade (PL1) – 4th / Lost in Elimination Final

2nd Grade (PL2) – 6th / Lost in Elimination Final

 3^{rd} Grade (PL3) – 4^{th} / Lost in Preliminary Final



4th Grade (PL4) – 3rd / Lost in Elimination Final

5th Grade (SL1) – Minor Premiers / PREMIERS

6th Grade (SL2) – Minor Premiers / Lost in Preliminary Final

7th Grade (\$L3) – Minor Premiers / PREMIERS

8th Grade (SL4) – Minor Premiers / PREMIERS

9th Grade (SL5) – 2nd / Lost in Preliminary Final

10th Grade (SL6) – Minor Premiers / Lost in Preliminary Final

Ryde Men's Representative Honours 2018

NATIONAL HONOURS

Amauri Amat: Australia O/50, O/55

Kieron Arthur: National Senior Development Squad

Tim Brand: Australian Kookaburra

Lachlan Cope: Australian All-Schools Shadow Ben Craig: National Senior Development Squad

Tom Craig: Australian Kookaburra

Mark Ellis: Australia 0/50

Hayden Dillon: Australian Junior Development Squad, Burras

Michael Dillon: Australian Country Team

Sam Gray: National Junior Development Squad

Mark Greaves: Australia O/50 (shadow)

Alex Jones: Australia 0/35

Lachlan Sharp: Australian Kookaburra

Bob Thompson: Australia O/60 Team Manager

STATE HONOURS

Kieron Arthur: TAS AHL

David Alexander: NSW O/50 2 Amauri Amat: NSW O/50 1 Tim Brand: NSW Waratahs AHL

Tom Brown: NSW U/21, NSW Waratahs AHL (debut)

Antony Caton: NSW O/35 Lachlan Cope: NSW CHS Ben Craig: NSW Waratahs AHL Tom Craig: NSW Waratahs AHL

Hayden Dillon: NSW U/21, NSW Waratahs AHL (debut)

Michael Dillon: NSW Country Mark Ellis: NSW O/50 1

Stuart Farauharson: NSW O/50 1

Samuel Gray: NSW U/21, NSW Waratahs AHL (debut)

Mark Greaves: NSW O/50 1 Alex Jones: NSW O/35

Nicholas McEwen: NSW Waratahs AHL

Jack Pickering: NSW U/21 Lachlan Pereira: NSW U/15 Phil Retford: NSW O/60 2

Lachlan Sharp: NSW Waratahs AHL

Mark Studd: NSW O/50 2

Michael Thompson-Blair: NSW O/50 Shadow

AAP SELECTION HONOURS

Lachlan Cope, Lachlan Pereira, Rhys Williams



Juniors President's Report

What a season! Over 230 kids in 14 junior teams & 3 minkey teams took to the fields this year to play some outstanding hockey. We welcomed many new players to the club this year, some moving from other clubs, interstate and even overseas. This year we had a number of players come and try hockey for the first time in every age group, hopefully they enjoyed their experience and will continue playing. The minkeys showed some great basic skills, improving each week and they looked like they were having fun doing it. Of our 14 junior teams 10 made it through to the semi-finals, 9 to grand finals and we won 5....an awesome effort from everyone involved! The development of the teams during the season was great to watch and the kids all seemed to be enjoying themselves both at training and games.

Congratulations to the 13 Panthers, 15 Tigers, 15 Lions, 17 Tigers and 17 Lions for exciting grand final wins this year. They worked hard all season and the results speak for themselves. Well done to the 11 Panthers, 13 Tigers, 15 Jaguars and 17 Panthers for their great efforts in the grand final, they had the spectators on the edge of their seats to the very end! The effort the players put in this year to achieve these results was the driving force behind us winning the North Area Club Championship this year, the 15th time we have won it over the last 16 years ... a huge achievement for everyone.

This year the junior coaching program moved up a notch through the efforts of the Junior Coaching Director, Greg Findley, who worked closely with Larry McIntosh, our Coaching Director, during the season to develop videos and coaching plans for the weekly training sessions. We were lucky to have many assistant coaches helping the coaches guide the players through the program this year. There are a lot of talented coaches in our club who volunteer their time on a weekly basis to develop skills in the juniors. They are well supported by our wonderful managers who make sure everyone gets to the right game at the right time, and keeps things calm during stressful games!

Our umpire contingent also continues to grow. We had quite a few new umpires join us this year which is fantastic. I would encourage you to consider taking up umpiring next season, it's a great way to gain a better understanding of the game, and it's a fun way to earn some extra money! It is often an unappreciated job with little reward and we are lucky that so many of our players are willing to learn and develop their skills. Please continue to encourage our umpires as with your support and positive attitudes it can make their task much more enjoyable for everyone.

A big thank you to the parents who have battled peak hour traffic each week to get their kids to training and sat on the sidelines in freezing weather to cheer the teams on during their games. Without your support the kids would not be the players they are today. We say farewell to a number of our U17 players this year as they finish their junior careers and move up to seniors. I know they will be an asset to any team they end up playing in next year. Keep playing, keep having fun.

The junior club, like every other sports club, would not function without the support of its wonderful volunteers. There are many people who work tirelessly behind the scenes all season and without their help the club would not be the great club it is today. Next year you may like to consider helping out, there are always lots of things that need to be done and many hands do make light work!

Junior Presentation night saw a huge crowd descend on the field to celebrate a successful season, enjoy the barbecue and have fun with friends. We were honoured to have John Cullen attend and present his major award. As you can imagine a lot of awards were handed out on the night to recognise our talented group of juniors. See the list below for award winners and team placings.

JUNIOR AWARD WINNERS - 2018

John Cullen Junior Sports Person of the Year – Ellen Campey Junior Club Person of the Year – Sebastien Butler Coach of the Year – Paul Levett Maurice Dawson Minkey Encouragement Award – Tamsyn Kemsley



Umpire Awards

North Area Encouragement Award – Will Shaw & Kaitlin Rushton Ryde Umpire Encouragement Award – Josh Robson & Maurits Flokstra

Coach Awards

Commitment to Coaching – Michael Papadakis

Team & Division	Place	Coach(es)	Manager	Awards
Minkeys	N/A	Maurie Dawson, Andrew Parker, Will Rogers & Tim Collier Asst: Tilly Keogh, Ellen Campey & Riley Cade		All players received a medal for participating
11 Panthers A	2 nd Place	Greg Findley Asst: Chris Pope	Emma Hall	Most Consistent: Hamish Geraghty Best & Fairest: Connor Hendriks NA Encouragement: Imogen Webster & Lucas Findley
U11 Tigers A	6 th Place	Adrian Osborne Asst: Peter Hughes	Anne Webster	Most Valuable Player: Piers Webster Most Improved: Sophie Hunter NA Encouragement: Aisling Kennedy & Rosie Fairbaim
U11 Lions B	6 th Place	Samuel Gray Asst: Scott MacDonald	Tia MacDonald	Most Consistent Player: Rose English Coaches Award: Zane MacDonald NA Encouragement: Eli MacDonald & Evan Parker
U11 Jaguars C	6 th Place	Tom Bruml Asst: Lizzy Wootton	Camilla Dries & Vanessa Reis	Players Player: Luke Tate Most Improved: Leela Panesar NA Encouragement: Mitchell Dries & Jack McKenna
U13 Panthers A	Premiers (Major & Minor)	Carol Jones Asst: Sebastien Butler	Johanna Makin	Consistent Focus & Effort: Adam Watson Most Improved: Gurmann Singh Pawar NA Encouragement: Alexandra Makin & Amelie Pope
U13 Tigers C	2 nd Place	Emma Cushing Asst: Evan Watson	Julie Brereton & Julie Brown	Best & Fairest: Charlotte O'Brien Most Versatile: Harry Brown NA Encouragement: Rayna Balakrishnan & Cassidy Mackay
13 Lions C	7 th Place	Paul Levett Asst: Tim Yule	Jon Whitear	Best & Fairest: Mia Francesca Yule Most Improved: Hana Applegarth NA Encouragement: Dominique Houghton & Evan Barnsley
U15 Panthers A - Metro	3 rd Place	Steve Besanvalle Asst: Matt Edwards	Wendela Flokstra- Mesker	Most Improved: Rosalie Flokstra Most Selfless: Zoe MacMillan
U15 Tigers B	Premiers (Major and Minor Premiers)	Michael Papadakis Asst: Reghyn Harrison & Will Papadakis	Sarah Williams	Most All Round Valuable Player: Alicia MacMillan Best Team Player: Daniel Craig NA Encouragement: Alexandra Walker & Oliver Cushing
U15 Lions C	Premiers (Major and	Duncan Taylor	Jose Togle	Best & Fairest: Tristan Krishna Most Improved: Zoe Jewell



Team & Division	Place	Coach(es)	Manager	Awards
	Minor Premiers)	Asst: Joe Blackburn & Narian Singh		NA Encouragement: Renee Balakrishnan & Tilly Rose Keogh
U15 Jaguars C	2 nd Place	Ken Campbell Asst: David Fairbairn	Michelle Fairbaim	Most Consistent: Finn Bowly Most Improved: Neave Powers NA Encouragement: Alana Doornbos & Elise Hewish
U17 Panthers A - Metro	2 nd Place	Jack Cullen Asst: Morgan Blamey & Ben Campey	Kirrily Pereira	Best & Fairest: Charlie Cannon Coaches Award: Holly Dawson
U17 Tigers B	Premiers (Major and Minor)	Teaj Sian	Steve Brown	Consistent Strong Performer: Luca Thomas Strong Work Ethic: Emily Phelps NA Encouragement: Lauren May & Tom Djani
U17 Lions C	Premiers (Major and Minor)	Paul Levett Asst: Kate Cade	Vanessa & Chris Marais	Best & Fairest: Nicholas Rushton Most Improved: Alex Costantino NA Encouragement: Bridget Hunt & Jayden Clark

It was also a successful year for the juniors with representative hockey. A large number of players represented North West Sydney and other Associations in all age groups for both field and indoor state championships. We also had many parents and coaches being involved as team managers, coaches or assistant coaches of rep teams this year and also some of our umpires participated at state champs too. We also had some U17 players selected to participate in the Sydney Metro Academy programs. The following players were selected in State teams or squads during the year.

Lachlan Cope – AAP Squad, NSW Combined Independent Schools team, NSW All Schools team, Australian All Schools team (shadow)

Macy Carrothers -AAP Squad & NSW All Schools team

Rhys Williams – AAP Squad

Ellen Campey - AAP Squad

Lachlan Cope – AAP Squad, NSW All Schools team

Georgie Graham – AAP Squad

Charlie Cannon - NSW Combined Independent Schools team

Layla Riley – U15 Blues team & AAP Squad

Holly Dawson – AAP Squad

Lachlan Pereira – U15 NSW State team & AAP Squad

Jaylen Harrison – U15 State Squad

Lachlan Wilson – U15 State Squad

Meghan May – U15 State Squad

Sebastien Griffith – U13 Stars team

Jared Findley – U13 Lions team & NSW PSSA team

I have really enjoyed my year of being junior president and I'm excited about hopefully doing it all again next year, it's getting a little bit easier each year! I have been extremely lucky to have a wonderful support network behind me, from both the club and my family. Looking forward to seeing everyone back again next year for another fun and exciting year of hockey.

Kirrily Pereira

Juniors President



Director of Coaching

Key themes for 2018 Junior Coaching Program were defensive principles, ball speed, accuracy of distribution skills, receiving under pressure, ball carry 1pm position, elimination skills on 2v1 & 3v2 principles. And playing concepts and positional structures.

Junior Coaching Director and Head Director of Coaching met with coaches for a midyear review. Key findings were implemented in preparation for the finals. All coaches to receive a program survey seeking feedback on their experiences throughout the year.

Senior grades use of video for game analysis, squad discussions and player education is a key area we need to build into our programs for 2019. Women and men's first grade teams had appointed a performance analysis assistant who provided game video most weeks. We need to utilize Hudl as a coaching tool more effectively across the Club, key focus for 2019.

There is a need to clearly identify key program objectives and additional support mechanisms within our coaching programs to support athlete's development and coach educational support.

JUNIOR PROGRAM - COACHING OBJECTIVES

- Progressive athlete development.
- Coach education and support on field and on request.
- The use of video for game review and athlete development is an area we need to coordinate better for 2019.
- Designed seven defensive skills video package for the junior program.
- Provided key coaching principles and themes for coaches and athletes.
- Video resources on warm up drills without the ball.
- Video resources on warm up drills with the ball.
- Coaches' weekly session plans on mobile app with access to all drills and skills.
- Key playing concepts midfield linkages, out letting back third, attacking third and goal keeping.

GOAL KEEPING

Thanks to Andy Duggan for your time, enthusiasm and leadership in delivering an awesome program that has had an amazing impact on the development of our junior and senior keepers.

APPRECIATION

Special thanks to Tim Collier, Morgan Blamey, Tom Brown, Sam Grey and Ben Craig for giving their time to assist in performing the skills required for videoing and edited for the 2018 program. Your contribution and support to the Ryde Junior program is appreciated.

ATHLETE MONITORING SYSTEM - PRE SEASON TRIALS

We are very thankful to Ryan Pereira whose expertise in designing the JP App phase 1 provided Athlete Monitoring System (AMS). The AMS has provided the Junior Program with an extremely valuable resource. The 2018 Junior Session plan drills and skills were on line for all coaches to access for their session. All athletes were accessed on their skill competencies and game performances using AMS - 1-5 ratings throughout 3 weeks of trials. At the end of each session, Kirrily and Ryan were able to download all the data progressively throughout the trials. Ryan presented to coaches phase 2 of the App, which provides game analysis and athlete performance ratings. This will be a key monitoring tool for 2019 across the junior program.

SUPPORT

The support Kirrily Pereira provides throughout the year is amazing, and is which is truly appreciated by all. Her contribution to the Junior Program, coordinating and collating the trials, selectors, coaches, players, squads and teams is outstanding. The club is so thankful for the energy you bring to the program.



COACHING PLAN PRESENTATION TO COACHES

Junior Coaching Director (JCD) Greg Finlay and Larry McIntosh (HDC) met with all coaches and support coaches to present the 2018 coaching plan. This process set the foundation of the 2018 key program objectives and coaching tools for all involved across the program.

JUNIOR COACHING DIRECTOR

Personal thank to Greg Findley. Your knowledge of the athletes across the grades is amazing. The energy you bring to the junior program is infectious. Your leadership across the junior program is so important for the progression of our junior's athletes. Look forward to building on this year's program as we work to towards finalizing the program design for 2019.

MINKEY PROGRAM

Maurice Dawson & Drew Parker. Amazing year thanks Maurice and Drew. The increased participation numbers are fantastic. Our challenge is to build a supportive framework of coaches to assist Maurice in the development of our Minkey players.

JUNIOR PROGRAM MID-YEAR REVIEW

- JCD and HDC met up with coaches post training sessions. We need to look at how we can improve this mid-year review
- Coaches requesting additional support across their respective groups
- White board sessions on playing structures and positional play
- Game play (mini games) coaches provided team objectives
- Games to be videoed for feedback in the future
- Game play preparation for the semi-finals. JCD and HCD on field as support for coaches worked extremely well
- Coaches prioritized key game objectives, with a number breaks to discuss and provide feedback to the group
- Across the groups there was a common theme addressed by the coaches being defensive principles and 3D skills. These areas were built into the session plan.

TEAM PERFORMANCE (FINALS)

JCD and HCD viewed a number of games leading into the semis including finals and grand finals. Key findings to be shared and implemented into 2019 program plan are: -

- Defensive pressing structures without the ball.
- Principles 2v1 & 3v2
- Specialist skills PC offensive and defensive.
- B3 & B4 out letting structures
- B3 & 2 DM structures
- MF possession building momentum
- Transfers through the MF
- Attacking 1/3 & circle outcomes
- Continued specialized goal keeping training.

JUNIOR COACHES, ASSISTANTS AND SUPPORT PERSONAL

Congratulations to all coaches, assistant coaches and parents that assisted throughout the year, thank you.

Larry McIntosh

Director of Coaching



Functions and Events

I'd like to start off by thanking the large number of people who gave up their time to assist with the organisation, setting up, and running of our social events this year. It might have only been to watch the BBQ for a few minutes, clean some tables or pack away chairs, but your help was hugely appreciated and ensured the functions ran smoothly.

2018 saw the continuation of New Player's Night and Family Day. New Players' Night gave us the opportunity to welcome new members to the club, and make the home change-room smell like vegetable oil for weeks to come. Family Day seems to be getting bigger and bigger every year; the sidelines were packed from 8am until 8pm, a constant stream of cakes, curries and sausages were being prepped and sold all day, costumed dogs roamed around, and Hockey Zone, once again, provided professional coverage of our games (with live streaming available for those who weren't able to find a park within 3km of the field!). The success of the day was thanks to backing from all club members and their families, and your support helped our teams in securing the Ryde-GNS Family Day Cup for another year.

We also ran Trivia Night, where we pitted 9 teams of Ryde's best and brightest minds against each other, with Tim Atkinson's team (Llamas in Pajamas) taking top honours. Most impressive of the night was the music by Amauri Amat, Abby Wilson and Tomek Bruml, which would not have been possible without Neyif Hanna behind the scenes on the sound system.

And finally, finishing the year, was Presentation night where we were able to recognise the incredible achievements of our members, award the best and fairest recognition for each team, thank those who quietly make the club run, as well as party, eat, and celebrate the completion of another season.

Thanks again to those who donated time, prizes, advice and encouragement throughout the year. A lot of work goes into each event, and the more people offering a will result in a more enjoyable and memorable time for everyone.

Chris Coleman

Functions and Events Coordinator



Sponsorship

This year marked the signing for two significant sponsorship deals. In July, the Momento Hospitality Group (a family owned business and owner of the recently opened Governor Hotel – opposite our home ground) was secured on a two-year major sponsorship deal. In October, CBC NSW (owners of Hillsbus) also signed with the Club on a shorter-term engagement. The full proceeds from both engagements will start next financial year with all funds to be fully invested back into the operations and the future development of the Club. These are important deals for the Club. We thank both organisations for their commitment and support.





We would also like to acknowledge and thank our other Club Community Supporters for their support and engagement during the year. When possible, please support them as they have supported your Club.



Kindly note - to protect the interests of the Club and the respective parties, due to the confidential nature of the terms of several the Sponsorship and Community Supporters engagements, it is not appropriate to make the information public. However, if you wish to discuss further and/or have a prospective contact or idea that may assist the Club please don't hesitate to contact glen.castensen@rydehockey.com.au

Regards,

Renee Dawson

Sponsorship Coordinator

Glen Castensen

Sponsorship Support



Facilities

With another incredibly successful season done and dusted, it is a great opportunity for me to thank the many people involved in maintaining our fantastic ground.

At the end of the 2017 season, management and many club members identified that our facility was looking tired and needed some tender loving care. Irrespective of the whispers of our relocating; a dedicated group got stuck into a substantial list of maintenance jobs.

Glen and Andrew successfully negotiated a \$20,000 grant and organised a large part of the fencing to be replaced.

Rob Whelan and many helpers upgraded the vital sprinkler system.

Brendan Laverty spent an intense week at the ground repainting the toilets, change room doors and metal railings. Many club members commented on what a great improvement it was.

Throughout the year we had two extremely well attended working bees. The many members and junior parents that attended moved mountains and were able to present our ground in an immaculate state for Ryde/GNS family day. A special mention to Jeff McEwen who spent hours driving the clubs turf cleaning machine. In my opinion the current turf we have is probably the best we have had.

We finally replaced the broken gas heaters, just in time for a bitterly cold Winter. It was great to see the spectators enjoying the warmth. I'm sure we have the only ground in Sydney where you can enjoy the game in such luxury!

Other jobs achieved:

- Replacement of BBQ
- Cleaning of shipping container
- Cleaning dugouts
- Installation of change room shelving
- Replacement of men's urinal
- Tower light bulb replacement
- Removal of old fridges
- Change room TV installation
- Replacement of main TV with thanks to Greg Findley
- Clearing sewerage blockages.

Our priority for next year is to upgrade the canteen!

On a final note, I would like to thank the many people who have helped to maintain what I think is the best hockey facility in Sydney. Another special mention to Bernard Moore who single handily mows and trims the shrubs all year round & Andrew (Rambo) who spends hours coordinating and instigating the maintenance issues.

Phil(Wally)Welsman

Facilities President



Women's Masters Report

The Ryde Women's Masters players have completed another successful year at Sydney Women's Hockey League. SWHL is the premier women's Masters competition in Sydney and is an association based competition which refuses entry to club based sides. This is unlike the Men's Masters competition which is generally club based. For these reasons, the Ryde women play under the banner of their local association, North West Sydney Hockey Association.

During 2018, eight teams were entered in the SWHL competition, two teams in each of the four divisions. One of the three selection trials was held at the Ryde field. Players and officials were so impressed with the venue (including the canteen and BBQ) that the committee has been asked to book all selections trials there for 2019.

The women's Masters players attended two indoor State Championships during 2018, the first in February in which four teams were entered, one division 3 team and three Division 4 teams. The second championship took place in October, as Hockey NSW sought to bring all ages and genders of indoor state championships in line. Again, four teams entered, but due to our success earlier in 2018, we were able to enter one division 2 team, two Division 3 teams and one division 4 team.

The Women's Masters Half State Championships were held in July. This year the NWS teams played in the Southern division, with the tournament held at Moorebank. Seven teams were registered in various divisions and age groups, the most of any association attending the southern tournament. It was a great weekend and one of triumph for the NWSHA first team, with NWSHA joint winners of the Over 35 Division 1 for the second year running. Teams were also entered in Over 35 Division 3, Over 40 Division 1, Over 45 Division 1, Over 45 Division 3, Over 50 Division 1 and Over 55 Division 1. The 2019 State Championships will be held at Bathurst, over four days, so keep the 25-28th of July 2019 free.

Well done to the Ryde players who played this season, including; Bernadette Robson, Letitia Cooper, Jenny Prosser, Flavia Neyertz, Trudy Green, Ina Cadorin, Laura Wilson, Lucinda Priddy, Hannah Goodchild, Erin Kelly, Kate Cade, Marielle Sprangers, Kim Kennedy, Kara Retford, Selina Ellis, Pippa Quilty, Trudy Green, Leigh Pasfield, Cecilia Guerrero, Ros O'Sullivan, Louisa Schultz, Belinda Madin, Phoebe Faulkner, Susan Matthews, Therese Lee, Michelle Giaquinto and Shelly Tate. Twenty-seven current Ryde players took part this season, plus some previous players, such as Lesley Mallows, Ros Mallit, Debbie Cormack, Wendela Flockstra, representing a quarter of the players in NWSHA women's Masters teams.

Thanks to Ryde stalwart Gavin Hughes who coached a division 1 team and to Trudy and Selina for their contribution as committee members. Thank you to Danielle and David Alexander for umpiring, your expertise was greatly appreciated. A special thanks to Selina for all your hard work throughout the year. Selina took on a key role with administering the whole of the NWSHA masters group of eight teams, the outdoor state championships and the two indoor state championships. She also played in division two and coached a division three team. Thanks again Selina.

The 2018 season has been a challenging but good year for women's Masters hockey at Ryde, with a record number of players participating. I look forward to next year being even better, with more participation and an appearance in the finals for more of the NWSHA team. So please think about joining us if you were born by 31st December 1984. There are teams available for everyone, regardless of experience or skill level. Below is a list containing the number of games players played by Ryde players, during the 2018 season.

Masters Games Played by RHHDHC Members - 2018

Kate Cade7Ina Candorin11Letitia Cooper8Selina Ellis10Michelle Giaquinto8Chu Wai Liew7



Flavia Neyetz	9
Ros O'Sullivan	8
Leigh Pasfield	2
Lucinda Priddy	11
Jennifer Prosser	12
Pippa Quilty	9
Kara Retford	10
Bernadette Robson	7
Marielle Sprangers	10

Pippa Quilty

Women's Masters Coordinator



Men's Masters Report

A Grade

This year has been full of the usual ups and downs but unlike many of the previous years we have been lucky enough to have had a bigger squad to cope with the unavoidable absences due to work, family commitments etc. It was great to see some more new blood in the team (and returning players) which was really needed with the age finally dropping down to 35yrs.

Across the season we showed that we were capable of beating anyone on the day and the few losses that we had weren't down to a lack of effort but more due to a shortage of numbers on the night. After most games the fun continued in the car park with the usual beers and snacks which only added to the opportunities for team bonding.

On the pitch we finished a very creditable 2^{nd} over the season and fought our way to the Grand Final and pushed UTS hard but unfortunately, we couldn't get the deciding goal in normal time and eventually lost the penalty shootout.

A big thank you to James Maltman for helping out with the game plans etc and everyone else that stepped up when Jimmy and I were not around.

Looking forward to next year and going one better! Hopefully everyone will return for next season and we can add some more new blood to ensure we are competitive again.

Mark Ellis

B Grade

Having been a part of the Masters B Grade team for the past few years I was excited at the beginning of the season to be leading the team. With several changes to the squad, departures through age / injury but on paper we still had too many players. As it turns out (and as predicted by many) we ended the season with just about the right number of players.

We were about half way through the season when I had to step down as the team's Goal Keeper, Kiwi stepped back to the helm as skipper and fortunately the Ryde Goal Keeping coach was able to join us, even though he was playing for a different club in one of the other master's competitions. Thanks Andy!! Kamal new to the club this season scored many of our goals, often turning a game around,

Stuart with his tenacious approach, Kiwi with his infamous sliding tackles and Maria (Justin Wicks) for his awesome work rate, to mention but a few of the outstanding players in the squad.

The league is a really close one with all teams winning and losing against the same oppositions, with only five points separating the top four teams by the end of the season. GNS edged Ryde out of the minor premiership, we were however victorious over GNS in the Grand Final. It was an absolute honour and pleasure to be a part of this team managing the final few games; it was both exciting and harrowing! This season again proving that the Ryde Masters B team are the team to beat!! Hopefully next year there will be a new influx of players, long may this team reign supreme!!

Tim Metcalfe Captain/Manager



C Grade

The Masters League team finished the season as Minor Premiers and lost the Grand Final to Sutherland 0 - 2. We were the defending premiers from 2017. The Masters League competition was very even with three teams finishing the season on 26 points with for / against placing Sutherland second and Northern Districts third.

The team's record was:

Played 12 games: Won 8, Drew 2 and Lost 2. The teams scored 37 goals and had 16 against.

The team was able to produce some good hockey throughout the season. Despite scoring a lot of goals early in the season, goal scoring became a bit of a rarity in the latter competition games.

After going down to Sutho 1-2 in a very close major semi, we were able to regroup and play a great game to beat Northern Districts 2-1 in the preliminary final. The win meant that three of the four Ryde Master's teams playing in the preliminary finals that night won through to the Grand Final next week.

The grand final against Sutho saw the team produce some very good hockey however crucial goal scoring chances were missed and several short corners not converted. This was unfortunate as in general play Ryde had the better of Sutho but the problem with scoring continued. Sutherland were able to pounce on two of their limited chances – they don't normally miss. This result continues Ryde's inability to beat Sutho which has been going on for some years. We have had draws with them over the years but no wins. The challenge for the team in the future will be to convert good field play into goals and when the opportunity arrives again beat Sutherland (now designated our boggy team) – hopefully in a Grand Final.

The team roster was made up of most of the 2017 Masters team plus some additions in Geoff Davenport, Teaj Sian, Scott MacDonald and the return of Tim Unger and James Foley. Unfortunately, early in the season Duncan Taylor (hamstring) and Gurwinder Singh (knee) sustained season ending injuries. The team was captained by Mark Richards who along with Mick Thompson Blair were the team's leading goal scorers with 8 goals.

Mark Richard was the team's Best & Fairest player followed by Geoff Davenport, Phil Retford and Tim Unger.

Special mentions:

Mark Studd – thanks for keeping for our team and the Legends team (after Ramiro was in an accident), appreciate the commitment and passion for the game.

Duncan Taylor – for supporting the team throughout the year and for arranging and managing the substitution in the critical finals series games.

Mick Thompson Blair – will be leaving for Perth (soon) and has probably played his last game for Ryde Masters, has been a regular player for more than 10 years. All the best to Mick and his family in Perth.

The team was: Mark Studd (GK), Charlie Calleja, Tim Unger, Steve Reilly, Ken Campbell, Mark Richard, Phil Retford, Teaj Sian, James Foley, Glen Pearce, Scott MacDonald, Brad Parkes, Mick Thompson Blair, Ken Nicholls, Duncan Taylor, Gurwinder Singh, Sean Leong and Geoff Davenport.

Many thanks to D grade players who filled in during the year – Aaron Scott, Steve Giaquinto and Andy Haynes.

Steve Reilly



D Grade

The Legends had a very good season in 2018, with the season ending with a hard-fought loss in Preliminary Final to Sutherland.

I would like to thank all of my teammates for their effort and support during the year. I would also like to congratulate the other Veterans teams for their successes (each reaching the Grand Final), and thank the Club for the structure and support provided to all teams.

Stephen Graham



Team Reports – Women's

1st Grade Women (ML1)

Moving into the head coach role the season following a maiden premiership win, some would say crazy, I was more excited. We had laid some great foundations over the past 2 years and I felt the win was only the beginning. Starting the season, we managed to recruit some new players into the squad and the returning Ryde players provided strong depth. We met in early February and introduced the team, me as head coach supported by Muz assistant coach, Larry HP coach and Kirsty our performance analyst. We presented the plan for the season and we had a strong focus on defence, we knew we could score goals from last season, but we also knew we leaked a few. Mikki and Kiona took on the captaincy, having a joint team provided two different voices and both lead the team from the outset.

With the talented group that we have we often have weeks where we don't have our full team due to state or national selections. Game 1 was one of these and playing Moorebank is always tough, especially the first game, we narrowly went down just 2-1. Keeping the goals conceded to a minimum was key for us this year ensuring we were a strong defensive team.

We got through the first 9 rounds with just 2 loses and only conceded 10 goals. We were looking good and playing well. Beating GNS comfortably in the first round we thought we might be on for a minor premiership this year. Coming up against Sydney Uni in the last game of round 1 we got outplayed. They had a strong team and it was a good reminder that the top four teams were all improving as the season went on and it was going to again be tough to win.

Jumping into the second half of the season, we probably started to get a target on our back, teams saying we were going to win it this year and that we were the team to beat. With some tough sanctions given to us by SWHL and some interesting game times on a Sunday night we fell short of the top two by the end of the season. A draw to Moorebank, loss to GNS and Syd Uni at the back end of the season saw us finishing in fourth again. It was a little disappointing however we had come fourth last year and beat everyone to win, I had belief we could do it again.

The top four teams finished this season with very little between them, which made for an exciting end to the season with games on the line to see who got top position. Going into the finals we had drawn Moorebank, we thought we drew the lucky card with Syd Uni and GNS playing well in the back end of the season. Never underestimate Moorebank. We had our full team for our semi-final clash; unfortunately, we could not perform at our best for the game. Things didn't go our way and we didn't react in a way to allow us to beat Moorebank. We played to their strengths, which in the end cost the game. It wasn't to be. But it's not the end for this group of players and the players coming through. This team has a huge future to build and get another premiership for Ryde.

Some special mentions for Mikki getting called into the Hockeyroos, Morgan, Abby, Andy and Zoe into the U21s, Lexi into the U21 blues and Grace and Hannah in to the Australian All Schools team. A huge thank-you to the core Ryde players that are there week in week out, we cannot be successful without those key players. For all the players in the squad and from the 2s that helped out the 1st grade when we had players away and injuries, thank you, the 1st grade team has such a bright future with all you guys coming through.

A huge thanks to Muz and Kirsty for their help this season, and to Ben for his support and finally Mick for jumping in as manager for the back end of the season, appreciate that you gave up even more of your time. Onwards and upwards to the next season, I see another win on the horizon for the Ryde Women. I feel very grateful for the opportunity to work with such an amazing, fun and talented group of players in such a supported club.

Gina Rees

1st Grade Coach



2nd Grade Women (ML2)

With Ben Wilson once again taking on the challenge of coaching second grade women, a diverse and enthusiastic team was selected. Well balanced, the team had a great mix of juniors, masters and senior players and together we were able to learn from each other and play some amazing hockey. We all improved a lot, both individually and as a team, so much that if you compared our first to our last game, you wouldn't believe it was actually the same team.

We came fifth, narrowly missing out on the finals by three points, behind Sydney Uni. With eight wins and only one draw, this was a very competitive season and a great outcome, particularly since a number of our players were doubling up to play for the first grade girls. It's also a well-deserved improvement from last year, as we worked extremely hard to improve in lots of different aspects of our game throughout the year. Mostly our structural play and positioning, which enabled us to play consistently, regardless of who was on the field at any time.

No matter what the result, our team remained supportive on and off the field. Like a little family we were all very positive and never let a loss get to us, instead we were optimistic and looked to what we could improve on. Not only this, but we took extra time to watch the first grade girls play, of course with some drinks and nibbles. This isn't to say we weren't prepared to work hard, as when we needed to step things up and get serious, we started doing some block runs before training.

We would really like to thank our captain Kiera, our manager Tami and our coach Ben for their consistent and positive approach to the team and competition. We look forward to another great season next year and hopefully even a grand final!

Kate Kennedy Player

3rd Grade Women (ML3)

To **Mick Gunner** and **Stuart Farquharson**, first of all we would like to say it's not you, it's us. We had a great deal of fun on the journey but didn't quite make the finish line. We had all the ingredients for great success, with a group of girls full of energy, strength, skill, speed and agility, which we displayed every week, but alas the goals were moving away from us in the circle.

We played to the level of our competition. Some days pushing the top teams to their limits while others we were getting road blocked by the less skilled or agile teams. We had such a strong group of ladies in theory with the strong central control of **Nicola Farquharson**. Nicola would swoop in to collect any stray ball. **Letitia Cooper (Chops)** would lay her body on the line for a goal, while **Ina Cadorin** often dominated the sideline one handed. We had such a strong defensive unit (I might be biased) starting with the best goalkeeper I've ever had the honour of playing beside, **Georgia Graham**. All of her communication from the very back kept us in check, and she was saving us left, right and centre. **Kim Kennedy** looked after any stray ball coming towards our defensive circle. Everyone played amazing hockey. Unfortunately, we seemed to lack the string to pull us all together as a team.

It was difficult getting everyone to training with everyone's schedules being so different. This definitely affected the level of hockey played. Injuries, illnesses, holidays and other commitments did influence our numbers in trainings and games. On occasion leaving a bare team on the pitch.

The biggest round of applause must be handed to Mick and Stuart who despite the disappointing end result were so positive and ready for the next week to improve on our short falls. It was like good cop, bad cop at times. Mick would give us the hard truths we needed to hear and then Stuart would sprinkle us with happiness, smiles and encouragement.

Thank you to everyone who played for 3rd grade this year. I had such a great time playing with you all and it was an honour to be your captain (even if it was just for a short while). You all have so



much to offer this club and I hope to see you next year, refreshed and ready to show all the other clubs that Ryde Panthers are a force to be reckoned with.

Hannah O'Brien

3rd Grade Captain

4th Grade Women (ML4)

The 4th grade team were pleasantly surprised with the appointment of coaches, Alex Shaw and James Stephens, upon arriving to the first game of the season. Although this game ended in a loss, we were all positive and looking forward to the season ahead.

Our core focuses of the season were team structure and positional placement, which in turn would support our transfer and attack up the line. Our press/fall away press was also key. Individually, we each had to concentrate on firm and direct passes, strong and tight defence, timing our runs and calls and 70-minute attentiveness. We had the key ingredients of a great team but were undercooked at times. Most games were very close with the possibility of coming away with either a win or a draw but we lacked aggression and finish in the attacking circle and let in those easily defendable goals. But no matter what the score was, we continued to fight. We took away both the positive and negative aspects of each game and looked to better them at the next training season.

Once the boys had implemented the general team structure, mid-season they changed it from a back four to a back three which allowed for the added mid fielder. This became challenging at times as it was a system that had not been attempted in our grade of hockey, with many of the women playing out of their preferred positions. However, by the end of season, we had much more trust in this and found it easy to adjust to either style and field positions, when required.

On behalf of all the girls, I would like to thank both Alex and James for their commitment, valuable feedback and patience! It must've been extremely frustrating at times with such a large squad, made up of both young and mature women, but they handled us very well and got the best out of each and every player. Attendance at training was also consistently high with a lot of intense sessions! Even though we only came away with 5 wins and 1 draw, we all learnt a lot and felt like winners in the end (especially after each win; the Ryde song will never sound as good). Their fresh outlook on the game was beneficial and I'm sure we would all push to get the boys involved again in the women's teams to implement their take on simple but high level hockey.

Thank you to each and every 4th grade player! We had a great mix of women. It was a very enjoyable season with lots of laughs (and a lot of sprints)! One to remember! (3)

Also a special thank you to Trudy (our team manager), those players that assisted 4th grade, as well as those from 4th grade who helped out the higher and lower graded teams, when needed!

Becc Dawson

4th Grade Captain

5th Grade Women (ML5)

2018 was a respectable year for our side as this was our first season in ML5 after being promoted from ML6 and can be seen as an adjustment season also a prelude to striving for the ML5 premiership in 2019. The side was a mixture of players from last year's side, new players to the club (Felicity, Sophie, Caitlyn and Kathryn), the returning to the club of Hannah, as well Katie and Pippa from our 6th grade side.



Though our results at the beginning of the season were not ideal, which I believe was the result of the team adjusting to the different level of competition from last year as well as missing a number of players that were either not playing due to injury, other reasons and/or being promoted to the ML4 side.

By the end of the season, we were competitive against all side bar a couple with us recording 5 wins and a draw with our biggest win (5-0) against Gordon North Sydney. The reason for this improvement in our competitiveness and general level of play was through working on our intensity, confidence, positivity and the belief that as a team we could compete in this grade.

From my point of view, there was definite improvement in all players' skills especially with Marielle, Em and Caitlyn as goalkeeper. Erin did a great job as the assistant coach/manager of our side and was a key in keeping the side positive, thankyou Erin for your involvement. Jen Prosser as our captain who did a stellar job in this capacity.

I would like to thank John Cullen for his involvement as it was great to get his feedback on some aspects of our play and this was instrumental in turning around our season. Thank you to Kate Cade as women's president for her support (Kate was also a member of our team and it was great to see her return from injury). Thanks to all players who were either regular players or assisted (Riley and Steph) our side latter in the season when we had a number of players unavailable.

I honestly believe that if we stay in this grade next year, we will be more competitive and we will get some great results.

Gav Hughes

5th Grade Coach

6th Grade Women (SNWHA 'C' Division)

I would like to start by thanking the coaches, David Goosakoff and Ben Warton. We honestly couldn't do any of it without your guidance and support. It can't be easy co-coaching but you guys do a great job communicating with one another and maintaining a clear and consistent vision for the team all year. You constantly reiterate the same goals for us and set up drills at training to help give us the skills to make these goals a reality. Your advice is consistent, well-meant and ultimately one of the keys to our success (stick on the ground!).

The year started well with good attendance by players at pre-season fitness and selection trials to determine their place in the team. It was a rocky start to the season as players adjusted to the new team dynamics on field, with few wins to show for the first nine rounds. By the halfway point this turned this around and the girls maintained a strong centre-field position on the ladder for the remainder of the season, missing out on a spot in finals by just two points.

As a team you worked hard to maintain a strong presence all year. We may not have gotten to finals this time, but we showed our division we are a force to be reckoned with. Our strength lies in our ability to work as a team, and to rally no matter the circumstance. I would like to thank the following players for their consistent hard work as part of our team this year: Alexandria Braude, Alexandra Woolley, Alison Vinkovic, Ceci Guerrero, Felicity Wyker, Kara-Lee Walton, Katie Duncan, Kirsten Thorpe, Leigh Pasfield, Melissa Armstrong, Michelle Giaqunito, Michelle Woods, Nat Cook, Nicky Warton, Prachi Redey, Rosalie Flokstra (GK) and Selina Ellis. Props to Alison, Leigh and Selina who made every game this season. You are the backbone that holds our team together – thank you.

We would like to thank the club committee, without whose hard work we would not be able to field a team, and none of this would be possible.



A special mention to Alexandria Braude who only joined the team this year but kindly (and bravely) took on the role of team manager when I sustained an injury early in the season and wasn't able to make it out to a number of the games.

Also, thank you to those that provided coaching assistance throughout the year, including our wonderful 'fill-in' coaches - Alex Braude and Sam Bird - who stepped up when help was needed — well done boys.

Hope to see you all back next season to bring us to finals glory.

Kasia Nowakowski

6th Grade Manager

7th Grade Women (SNWHA 'D' Division)

This season was a respectable season for the side also one where the main focus was the development of the core basic skills of the individual players and the team. This focus on skills development resulted in an overall noticeable improvement in each player with some great ball movement and the results going in our favour later in the season.

The side gelled really well as most of the team had played in 2017 with the addition of Belinda Madden, Caroline Opedisano, and Liz Wootton, with Rose Tate, Ryde Junior, filing in when the team was short. The team also had the pleasure of having 4 coaches (Erin Kelly, Ina Cadorin, Pauli Martins and myself) with some involvement by Kate Cade.

Some of the highlights for the team besides the overall improvements were the team achieving their first win (4-1) in 2 seasons against Hornsby RSL, who were the top of the table, Julia Parker (fullback) scoring a goal whilst playing as an inner. Julia became an effective hitter on the team's penalty corners.

Special mention should be made to Ros O'Sullivan for doing a great job as Team Manager as she was always highly efficient and a joy to work with. Thanks to Erin, Ina, Pauli and Kate for assisting with the coaching of the side.

From a coaching point of view, I think I can say this on behalf of Erin, Ina and Pauli, that it was great to coach these ladies as they were always keen to learn, improve their skills and enjoy their hockey.

As a whole the improvements achieved this season will put the team in good stead to compete against their opponents in 2019.

Gavin Hughes (on behalf of Erin Kelly, Ina Cadorin, Paul Martins)

7th Grade Coach



Team Reports – Men's

1st Grade Men (PL1)

Some wonderful strides forward this year working towards player led enjoyment and the commitment to continually improve both physically, tactically and individually.

A great start to the season with a trip to Brisbane for the 9's tournament focussing on team cohesion and fitness. A successful and worthwhile trip. After a long and arduous pre-season, the team enjoyed the start to the season. There were many highlights along the way, a decisive win over NWS certainly one of them. During the year there were times when young players, and some not so young (Alex), were given the call up to play and it was fantastic to see the way they acquitted themselves into the team.

Unfortunately, the season ended prematurely in the semi-final.

Congratulations to the many athletes who were able to achieve representative honours throughout the season. Too many to mention but a really well-deserved reward for all of the hard work and dedication you have put in to your skill set.

A massive thank-you to TC, a national coach in waiting, Larry McIntosh, the man who has a solution to everything, David Moore, video analysist genius, Dave Goosakoff, the fixer of all and Glen Castensen, (yes Elizabeth Glen did attend all games and training!!) for all of your work throughout the season.

To close congratulations to all the athletes who bought into the culture of the team. Your work ethic and willingness to embrace and try new structures allowed the team to perform with success this year. Let's celebrate 2018 and look forward to continuing to improve as we strive to go further in 2019.

Have a fantastic off-season as we celebrate this year and look forward to bigger and better results in 2019.

Matthew McKay

1st Grade Coach

2nd Grade Men (PL2)

Firstly, I would like to thank the club management for the opportunity to coach 2nd Grade.

Secondly, would like to thank the full roster of players that rotated through 2nd Grade (about 32 players last count!!).

But crucially – Alex Shaw/ Alan Retford/ Alex Jones – the essence of the Panther fighting spirit – they were just genuine to the 2nd Grade cause and produced the right vigour to propel the team to win matches. I would like to particularly salute our captain **Alex Shaw** and the **Rock of Gibraltar (Alan Retford)** to participate and perform for the team. Mr. Shaw was just dynamic and succeeded in changing the momentum of games with his indomitable spirit! - However, I would like to salute ALL the players – the walking wounded who showed up and performed most admirably through the season and responded to the senior players positively.

Thirdly, I would like to thank the same cohort to have put up with me in my first season in the "Senior Men's" coaching role – I have only assisted in the Juniors cohort prior to this role. Thus - thank you for your patience



Most importantly, I would like to thank the "moderators/mentors" – the glue that held me and my mental state together plus guided my 2nd Grade journey – Dean Merchant and Garry Goosakoff. These guys are worth their weight in "gold curry".

Garry – you were immense in putting up with me, but importantly intervened at crucial moments in games to suggest a different option. Obviously, your experience in managing various teams across all levels in NSW shined through.

Dean – What a job you have - and how you superbly you handled the various competing scenarios to get all the teams across the line every week – and may I add even on his treasured holidays you were giving me a hard time!

However, I'd really like to emphasise that Dean (was a beacon of light for me) in my initial senior season with numerous "interesting discussions" trying to steer my ship in the right direction. His experience and patience with me and about a whole gamut of issues pertaining to player selection and specifically 2nd Grade hockey and plus, plus! – Thank you Dean – I really appreciated your engagement.

Now to the team:

- 1. As a first-time coach of a Men's team was rather intriguing and had varied experiences It was a learning curve,
- 2. Through the season, the team performed like the waves on Bondi Beach if the correct configuration of troopers were present coupled with the correct attitude/experience we could beat any team (e.g. the eventual premiers UNSW who we outplayed in the 2nd round to win 5-4 after succumbing to them 7-2 in the first round) This win actually exemplified the true quality of 2018 Ryde 2nd Grade cohort, when they were allowed to be together as a team
- 3. However, we could also go "missing" through other games where we really should have won but ended up with draws and unexpected losses (this was not helped by other uncontrollable factors)
- 4. But we did make the semis However, with a depleted team due to established protocol-we were just magnificent in the loss in our final game The boys played superbly as they rallied and played in the "Panther spirit" with some playing on injured as we ran out of fit subs in the first 10 minutes
- 5. Finally, I would like to salute all the players the walking wounded who showed up and performed most admirably through the season

In conclusion - And without a doubt, the phone calls/emails from TC/Larry/Dean/Greg Findley were invaluable. The support and actual caring about my role by Casto (on a regular manner) and the management team was just phenomenal.

In this regard, Rambo's random mid-week phone calls to me, in my worrying days, were incredibly well timed and assisted in getting me across the line. (Are u OK – slogan). In addition- this also includes Maurice who was particularly concerned about my first-year experience. This is what I love about this Club – Maurice may have left on paper but he still there in spirit – these are the exact reasons I want to assist the club going forward.

I personally hope that that in 2019, I will be able to better contribute and add better value to the players - and evolve the players/club in the right direction.

Narian/Garry

2nd Grade Coach (Ryde black stripes)/2nd Grade Manager (Ryde white stripes) = Ryde Panther Spirit (black & white stripes)

Narian Singh

2nd Grade Coach



3rd Grade Men (PL3)

Ryde Men's 3rd grade had season that was at times difficult but was ultimately rewarding. Coaches Steve Dunn & John Cullen placed an emphasis on junior development throughout the year and as such the season started with a very young side attending the Hunter Cup in Newcastle attempting to gel before the season started. The side produced some positive results and showed of the talent there to develop and so the season started with high hopes.

The beginning of the 3rd Grade season saw lot of changes in the line-up due to injuries of some of the older players and in higher grades. With the early difficulties the results were hit and miss. Steve made a point of stoking enthusiasm in the team to keep pushing through and we slowly started to see development of a more cohesive side.

Credit must go to Jack Cullen for being an important role model to the younger players this year with his efforts at training and his ability to quickly take on board coaching. With his leadership the group learned how to graft and improve.

By the end of the year the whole team was producing quality individual performances and were able to grind out wins reliably. This was no more evident that in the team's preliminary semi-final where the team dealt with each set back by responding quickly with a goal, eventually getting the better of Sydney Uni in extra time. They then backed this up with a tough 3-4 extra time loss to eventually premiers UTS.

Overall, it was a rewarding year to be a part of 3rd grade and see the progression of a large number of our junior players as well as watch a few of great veteran players we have pull off some of their old sly tricks. Steve, John and myself were very proud of all the players involved in 3rd grade this year and wish all of the players the best next year.

Michael English

3rd Grade Manager

4th Grade Men (PL4)

Season 2018 brought a new look to the Ryde 4th grade men's team, despite all the new faces, there was still the good mixer of both young talent and older "talent".

This new look team had a number of highlights throughout the season, taking Sydney Uni to town with a 5 nil win, being the first team to knock off unbeaten Easts and working as a team to win both games against UNSW – our previous bogey team. Other off field highlights included a new Australian citizen, a baby, and what can only be described as a well overdue engagement.

As a new team we had some great results, winning 15 of our matches, 11 of these being with 2 or more goals ahead and 9 clean sheets. At the end of the home and away season we scored more goals than any other team in the competition.

Every single player from 4th grade deserves recognition as each of them put in 100% every game and left everything on pitch. I'd also like to thank every player from other grades who helped out the most of these players doubling up to help out.

I'd also like to give a special thanks to Dan who helped out with everything and made things much easier. I'd also like to thank both Steve B and Steve D who helped out with selections.

Kieran Nicholson

4th Grade Captain



5th Grade Men (SL1)

A new year with mostly the same team and some dynamic new individuals but the same plan as last season – Redemption. Winning the minor premiership, the two years previous with nothing to show for it in terms of the big prize, left a fire in the belly of the 5th grade boys. This fire burned brightly and intensely all year. Out of 18 rounds in the regular season, we finished with 15 wins and 3 draws. Undefeated in the regular season with both the best attack (70 goals for) and best defence (18 goals against) in the competition, there was no concerns of being caught in goal differential (32 goals away from second place). This was not only a great team effort but is also a good reflection of the health of the club. Thankfully a core playing group for 5th grade this year was present most weeks which meant that we consistently had 12-13 regular players.

The highlight of the season was no doubt the grand final Cinderella story. But this story starts with the round games and minor semi-final against UTS. With a 2-2 draw in Round 5, 4-1 Win in Round 10 and 1-1 draw in Round 15, UTS were always the danger team. It was a sunny Saturday afternoon at Sydney Olympic park that saw the mighty Ryde 5th grade take on an experienced UTS in the minor semi-final. Playing a less than entertaining, defensive brand of hockey, UTS scored an early goal. Just before the second half, Mark Greaves scored the equaliser which was a sight we were more than used to by now with 22 goals for the season. They quickly snapped one more goal back within minutes of our goal that seemed to break the spirits of the Ryde faithful. The whole second half saw UTS crowd the circle with 11 defensive players and a tactic that prohibited entry in to the circle in any meaningful way. The game stayed that way for the duration of the match and UTS were straight in to the grand final. After disposing of the old enemy Briars in the major semi-final, we were to face UTS again in the big game.

The 8th of September at 7.30pm was the stage for the rematch. After three successive minor premierships, the nervous tension in the change rooms was palpable. A good, long team warm up and clear vision of tactics meant we were well prepared. The game begun and within 15 minutes, UTS had scored the first goal. They adopted the same defensive strategy that worked in the semifinal and we had to think of something fast. It took a mid-air slap shot in to the goal by Damien Cork to even up the scores. Much to the delight of the boisterous Ryde crowd. With the game in the balance, it was Mark Greaves (again) who broke the deadlock. Trevor Sanderson increased the lead and the game seemed all but over. However, a penalty stroke in the dying seconds of the game saw Owen Crotty come up to very unfamiliar territory in the circle. He slotted the goal past the keeper in his glee, ran past the UTS defender to high five him. The game ended 4-1 in favour of the mighty 5th grade Ryde panthers.

Finally, redemption was achieved and the celebrations could begin. Congratulations to the 5^{th} grade team for what was a very successful and enjoyable season with great camaraderie and banter. The journey and the result was a testament to the hard work and dedication each player showed throughout the whole season.

Steven Besanvalle

5th Grade Coach/Manager

6th Grade Men (SL2)

Another great year for Ryde men's Club and it was no exception for 6th grade who were the reigning Champions.

As was the case last year, 5th and 6th grade enjoyed great camaraderie as we shared a training slot and players throughout the season. Attendance at training was very good for most of the season and contributed to our performance on the field. We had great support for our goalkeepers with Andy Duggan leading a dedicated goalie session each week. We noticed some definite



improvement in the performance and enthusiasm of our goalkeepers throughout the season. A big thanks to Andy.

As the season progressed we were competing with Sutherland for the minor premiership and it came down to the last round where this battle was settled. We were triumphant and finished the regular season as minor premiers.

The semi-finals were disappointing and we bowed out in the qualifying final. This season we had a balance of youngsters and experienced players. The youngsters developed very well throughout the season and we look forward to seeing them progress throughout the ranks as their hockey careers progress. The youngsters were involved in our successful junior sides and represented NWSH at state Championships. We also had some of our experienced guys playing midweek masters and representing at State and National Championships. Well done to you all.

All in all, this was a very enjoyable season which was punctuated by some great performances on the field and a very positive attitude. Thanks to James Lear for taking care of the administrative duties throughout the season and Andrew Ramsay for running the side for a fair part of the season.

Congratulations and thanks also to the 5^{th} grade boys who took out their premiership and ran most of the training sessions and banter.

Amauri (Muz) Amat 6th grade Captain

7th Grade Men (SL3)

A sensational season of hockey for an extremely well balanced and formidable squad in the 2018 Ryde SL3 men's team.

A number of SL3 "Legends" (John Cullen, Glen Castensen, Rob Egger, Ken Campbell, Teaj Sian, Scott Familton, Mark Studd, Manjit Gill and Gurwinder Singh) returned for another season; our contingent of "fit & fast" players (Luke Fletcher, Stephen Burns, Ben Warton and Joel Scott) came back and were joined by some newbies (Milan Sian, Liam O'Shea and Liam Hitchcock) as well as a couple of players who had seen the light and returned to playing hockey after a few seasons off playing other sports (no names mentioned Dave Gardner or Scott Madycki). Mid season we had a bit of a shuffle and Alex Perry & Andrew Duggan joined the squad as we made our way into the finals.

The SL3 line up of teams included the usual suspects of strong opposition teams including UTS, Briars, Macquarie University and Norwest Strikers. St George/Randwick had a very strong 2^{nd} half of the season and rose from bottom 4 to finish 2^{nd} on the ladder in the lead up to the finals.

Our Ryde SL3 team had a fantastic run throughout the season, dominating many of our games. We finished Minor Premiers after the preliminary rounds and went on to play St George in the Major Semi Final at Olympic Park on 25th August. A goal in the first half by "Legend" Glen Castensen put us in the lead but St George came back in full attack mode and thanks to great defence from Steve Burns, Ken Campbell and Ben Warton; were denied the equaliser. Liam O'Shea planted another goal in the net providing the 2 goal buffer we desperately needed. With 2 minutes to go in normal time, St George put a goal in from a short corner but our team gallantly held on to secure a spot in the Grand Final.

The Grand Final was on 8th September and was against Briars who had been our nemesis all season; we had suffered our first loss of the season against them when we met them in Round 1 and they were a strong team with a lot of fight and determination to beat us. Like the Grand Final in 2017, we had an abundance of players in our line up eligible and available to play in the 2018 final...well



17 in total actually. As player/manager/coach I took one for the team and did the right thing taking myself off the list. We had a very strong line up on the Grand Final match card and they all excelled on the field on that day. We controlled the game from the get go and Briars did not even get a look in. The game was dominated by our attacking mid-fielders, our halves and our forwards. Our defence was absolutely solid and we kept a clean sheet. We scored three brilliant goals to finish off an absolutely sensational season as deserved Premiers with a 3-0 victory. The goals in the Grand Final were scored by Rob Egger (1), John Cullen (1) and Liam Hitchcock (1).

A special mention to our younger players in our team who worked hard all season and played very focused & balanced hockey in the finals. It was great to see them grow as players during the season and they provided the energy and speed that we needed as a team. Alex Perry played an awesome game in the final and put his body on the line for the team. Thank you Alex and many thanks to Ben Warton, Joel Scott, Liam O'Shea, Liam Hitchcock, Milan Sian and Scott Madycki for your efforts also.

TOP GOAL SCORERS FOR THE SEASON:

10 goals	Rob Egger
10 goals	Liam O'Shea
9 goals	Glen Castensen
9 goals	Liam Hitchcock
9 goals	Manjit Gill
8 goals	Dave Gardner
7 goals	Scott Madycki

BEST & FAIREST:

With such strong consistent performances week in and week out, it was always a real challenge to pick the B&F. That said, there was always one person that stood out and consistently played truly out of their skin; that was our Full Back extradonaire; Stephen Burns, who was so committed to the team that he even timed the birth of his second child to allow him to make the field on time!

Also a special mention to John Cullen and Dave Gardner who also played a great season, firming up our half line and providing much needed distribution and attack. Respectively they both finished 2nd and 3rd in our Best & Fairest rankings.

THE 2018 SQUAD (1-16 PLAYED THE GRAND FINAL):

- 1. Andrew Duggan
- 2. Stephen Burns
- 3. Ken Campbell
- 4. Glen Castensen
- 5. John Cullen
- 6. Robert Egger
- 7. Luke Fletcher
- 8. Manjit Gill
- 9. Milan Sian
- 10. Scott Madycki
- 11. Liam O'Shea
- 12. Ben Warton
- 13. Joel Scott
- 14. Alex Perry
- 15. Dave Gardner
- 16. Liam Hitchcock
- 17. Teaj Sian
- 18. Scott Familton
- 19. Gurwinder Sinah
- 20. Mark Studd



SUMMARY:

In summary, a great bunch of guys, a fantastic season and a triumph for Ryde SL3 (7th Grade) as Premiers of the 2018 season. Well done to all and many thanks to family & friends for your support during the season.

Hope to see you all next season!

Teaj Sian

7th grade Coach and Manager

8th Grade Men (SL4)

Grand Final Winners – in extra time...phew!

Minor Premiers

Undefeated season – 20 games with 20 wins

94 goals for and 11 against

In all respects a great season, on the scoreboard, in the style of play and in the fun and camaraderie of the team. The team was a mix of some players from prior year and those new to Ryde, and of some young players and some not so young. But it quickly became clear we could have a crack side and that the team "gelled" - it would be a fun year.

The first thing that became apparent is that we had some genuine strikers! Yea hah!! The first game after starting slowly on a hot day was a blistering 8-0 win. It also marked the return after a couple of injury plagued seasons of the armored Simon Tan with 3 goals (top goals scored for team with 18). It also saw 3 others new to Ryde on the scoreboard; Liam (Big Red) Hitchcock, Jackson (Jacko) Rickard, and Scotty MacDonald.

It was a trend that continued with an average of 4.7 goals a game. The season saw each of these players get over 10 goals, with the ever-present Tim Atkinson from inner joining them with 12 goals also.

But it was not all one way, the ball does not just appear for the strikers to score and it was the short passing game that became the team's objective and made us the proudest. This is especially so of the game against St George at Kyeemagh that all of those who played remember with awe. The opposition team had been sprinkled with players from the higher grades, but they were left wondering as the passes kept on flowing and going to a running Ryde player.

This style of game was championed by our experienced center-half Mark Richard, who seemingly mystified the opposition to keep the ball moving forward through the centre. And with him to "feed the beasts" up front were the inners and half line. The inners and wingers never stopped running and were the crucial link-men; Kevin Li, Tim Atkinson, Carlin Williamson and Thomas Brettell.

It was however those at the back who were really the unsung heroes of the team. While the "pretty boys" up front hugged and kissed after scoring goals it was the halves/defensive-mids (whatever they are called) backs and goalies who kept the goals against down to 8 in the regular season compared to the next best team in the division with 30 against. And critically they laid the foundation of the team passing game by splitting the opposition by passing wide and hard, quickly. The half-line was Chris Bedford, Chris (Pirate) Richard and our Spanish import Manuel de Miguel. The defensive backs Dean Merchant and Tim Campbell (perhaps not the most mobile but made up for it in hockey smarts) and the indomitable attacking back Al Johnson. A special mention to our goalies; Andrew Duggan for the first 6 games and then our own Jacob Brown.



The team would also like to thank the many other players who helped us out during the year. We had a total of 39 players this year and they stood in helped make it the season it was. There are many stories from the year, but the best is undoubtedly the "great escape" of the Grand Final. The undefeated season until the grand final looked like a horrible train-wreck when Sutho scored in the final minutes to take the game to 2-2 at full time. It was then a nervous 9 a-side 0-0 and then only in the last minute of 7 a side did Tim A. hit the ball from our 22 to the back stick of Liam on the run who then out-maneuvered the keeper to put the goal in the back of the net for the win!

And so, thank you from the hapless player who tore his hamstring off the bone before the start of the season and could nothing but watch and run the subs after our Manager Robert Thompson had to withdraw due to work commitments. Thanks also to Dean who did the manager and selections role for much of the season. It was a great season and one we will always remember for the results but more, the friendships forged.

Duncan Taylor 8th Grade Manager

9th Grade Men (SL5)

Result – Minor Premiers Runners up, lost in elimination final

2018 started promisingly with a 100 per cent win record in the early part of the season. Despite a little wobble in the middle we went into the last few games top of the table, however we suffered an unexpected reversal in the last few games and dropped into second place. Although narrowly losing in the major semi-final, we went into the elimination final full of confidence. The game was hard fought and very close, with the match being decided on a golden goal in the second half of extra time. Heart creakingly we were 1 min 40 seconds from going through to the final.

During the course of the year we celebrated Brad Parkes' 1000 games for the club, and said goodbye to Mike Thompson-Blair who moved to WA.

I would like to thank everyone who played and helped out during the season.

James Foley
9th Grade Manager

10th Grade Men (SL6)

The 2018 season started with losing Gav and Andre to injuries during the trials and gaining lots of new faces to the team and Ryde Hunters Hill Hockey Club. We entered into round one with no keeper having Jacob Brown doubling up and lending a helping hand. Soon after Michael Dahl Joined our side following a mid-year change as Michael was moved to 9th grade and one of our Ryde juniors Luca Thomas stepping in and doing an amazing job.

Not forgetting Eric Blackburn who also played a game in goals. A massive thank you to all the keepers for a job well done. After playing around with player positions and structure we were off to a flying start and only allowing 13 goals in and winning the Minor Premiership.

Unfortunately, we had a terrible finals campaign losing both chances and letting in 9 goals in two games to end the season.

Other than a sad end to the year I had a great time looking after the boys and hope the boys



enjoyed the season as much as I did.

I also would like to mention our Juniors who helped out throughout the season, Luca Thomas, Nicholas Rushton, Rory Woods and Josh Kooner, we really appreciate the help.

Our most memorable moment would be our game against Bentstix were we won 10-1 also having some of our players improving on their personal bests.

Hope to see all the boys back next year.

Neyif Hanna 10th Grade Captain



Women's League Tables

1st Grade (ML1)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
GNS 1	18	13	1	4	61	21	40	40
Sydney Uni 1	18	12	4	2	44	20	24	40
Moorebank 1	18	12	2	4	52	22	30	38
RHH 1	18	12	1	5	61	26	35	34
Mac/Btown 1	18	8	2	8	43	45	-2	26
UTS 1	18	6	4	8	30	48	-18	22
UNSW 1	18	5	4	9	24	29	-5	19
WD 1	18	5	3	10	37	54	-17	18
Briars 1	18	5	3	10	29	49	-20	18
Glebe 1	18	0	0	18	15	82	-67	0

2nd Grade (ML2)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Moorebank 2	18	15	1	2	53	11	42	46
Strikers 1	18	14	0	4	54	20	34	42
Mac/Btown 2	18	10	2	6	32	27	5	32
Sydney Uni 2	18	8	7	3	29	15	14	31
RHH 2	18	8	1	9	23	30	-7	25
WD 2	18	6	4	8	29	31	-2	22
Macquarie Uni 1	18	7	1	10	21	32	-11	22
Glebe 2	18	4	4	10	20	31	-11	16
GNS 2	18	4	4	10	24	40	-16	16
MosHarbour 1	18	1	2	15	11	59	-48	5

3rd Grade (ML3)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Moorebank 3	18	13	2	3	51	20	31	41
Sydney Uni 3	18	12	5	1	37	10	27	41
UNSW 2	18	12	2	4	42	16	26	38
UTS 2	18	8	5	5	27	19	8	26
Manly 1	18	7	4	7	19	21	-2	25
MosHarbour 2	18	8	1	9	30	37	-7	25
Strikers 2	18	7	3	8	21	26	-5	24
Briars 2	18	3	3	12	13	31	-18	12
GNS 3	18	3	2	12	25	43	-18	11
RHH 3	18	3	1	14	12	54	-42	10



4th Grade (ML4)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Wenty 1	18	13	3	2	41	16	25	42
UNSW 3	18	13	1	4	32	13	19	40
MosHarbour 3	18	12	2	4	24	22	2	38
Glebe 3	18	10	2	6	29	19	10	32
Macquarie Uni 2	18	9	1	8	21	21	0	28
Sydney Uni 4	18	7	4	7	24	23	1	25
Strikers 3	18	5	4	9	21	23	-2	19
Briars 3	18	4	4	10	23	30	-7	16
RHH 4	18	5	1	12	18	31	-13	16
WD 3	18	0	2	16	6	41	-35	-2

5th Grade (ML5)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Moorebank 4	18	12	5	1	38	13	25	41
Sydney Uni 5	18	13	1	4	49	20	29	40
Mac/Btown 3	18	11	3	4	52	24	28	36
Manly 2	18	10	2	6	38	25	13	32
MosHarbour 4	18	9	3	6	35	18	17	30
St George	18	8	2	8	32	41	-9	26
Strikers 4	18	8	1	9	26	29	-3	25
RHH 5	18	5	1	12	21	37	-16	16
Briars 4	18	1	3	14	7	52	-45	6
GNS 4	18	1	3	14	10	49	-39	3

6th Grade (SNWHA DIV B)

Team	PLAYED	WIN	LOSS	DRAW	GF	GA	GD	Pts
UTS 4	18	15	2	1	77	19	58	46
UTS-et	18	12	1	5	56	19	37	41
Manly 3	18	12	3	3	51	24	27	39
Mac Uni 4	18	9	7	2	33	27	6	29
RHH 6	18	8	7	3	32	31	1	27
Sydney Uni 8	18	7	9	2	28	43	-15	23
Hornsby RSL 2	18	6	12		34	40	-6	18
Sydney Uni 7	18	5	12	1	18	43	-25	16
Mirrabooka 3	18	5	12	1	21	56	-35	16
Briars	18	1	15	2	11	59	-48	5



7th Grade (SNWHA DIV C)

Team	PLAYED	WIN	LOSS	DRAW	FORFEIT	GF	GA	GD	Pts
Baulkham Hills	18	12	4	1	1	59	23	36	40
Hornsby RSL 3	18	12	4	1	1	44	13	31	40
UTS 5	18	11	4	3		52	18	34	36
ND Strikers Green 1	18	10	7	1		28	27	1	31
Mac Uni 5	18	9	7	2		25	29	-4	29
Nths Black Bears	18	6	9	3		24	43	-19	21
ND Strikers Gold 2	18	4	9	5		23	34	-11	17
Sydney Uni 10	18	4	10	4		19	45	-26	16
RHH 7	18	3	9	6		15	27	-12	15
Sydney Uni 9	18	2	12	4		13	43	-30	10



Men's League Tables

1st Grade (PL1)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Moorebank	18	15	2	1	95	17	78	47
Liverpool								
Sutherland	18	15	2	1	99	24	75	47
UNSW	18	11	3	4	79	38	41	36
Ryde HH	18	11	1	6	77	40	37	34
NWS	18	9	2	7	45	34	11	29
Briars1	18	8	1	9	52	61	-9	25
GNS	18	5	3	10	43	72	-29	18
Sydney Uni	18	4	1	13	33	79	-46	13
Glebe	18	3	1	14	29	87	-58	10
St George/Rand	18	1	0	17	16	116	-100	3

2nd Grade (PL2)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Moorebank Liverpool	22	19	1	2	107	25	82	58
Briars2	22	16	4	2	76	33	43	52
UNSW	22	16	3	3	75	39	36	51
Sutherland	22	15	3	4	100	41	59	48
Sydney Uni	22	10	3	9	61	38	23	33
Ryde HH	22	9	4	9	59	56	3	31
Macquarie Uni	22	9	2	11	59	64	-5	29
NWS	22	8	4	10	55	41	14	28
Easts	22	5	4	13	46	81	-35	19
Glebe	22	3	1	17	30	101	-71	13
St George/Rand	22	3	2	17	25	110	-85	11
GNS	22	2	3	17	18	82	-64	9

3rd Grade (PL3)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
UTS	18	17	1	0	79	21	58	52
Moorebank Liverpool	18	11	3	4	54	32	22	36
Glebe	18	8	4	6	51	40	11	28
Ryde HH	18	8	2	8	42	44	-2	26
Sydney Uni 3s	18	7	3	8	30	32	-2	24
UNSW	18	6	6	6	29	36	-7	24
Briars3	18	6	4	8	34	51	-17	22
NWS	18	3	6	9	22	35	-13	15
Sutherland	18	3	5	10	27	43	-16	14
Macquarie Uni	18	2	4	12	28	62	-34	10



4th Grade (PL4)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Easts	22	16	3	3	64	25	39	51
Sydney Uni	22	16	2	4	68	27	41	50
Ryde HH	22	15	3	4	71	33	38	48
St George/Rand	22	13	3	6	61	46	15	42
UNSW	22	11	5	6	48	30	18	38
Sutherland	22	9	6	7	40	34	6	33
GNS	22	9	6	7	44	48	-4	33
NWS	22	6	4	12	21	38	-17	22
Macquarie Uni	22	4	6	12	20	40	-20	18
Briars4	22	4	4	14	26	54	-28	16
Moorebank	22	3	3	16	26	64	-38	12
Glebe	22	1	5	16	20	70	-50	8

5th Grade (SL1)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde HH	18	15	3	0	70	18	52	48
UTS	18	10	4	4	47	27	20	34
Briars5	18	10	2	6	42	27	15	32
UNSW	18	7	0	11	44	47	-3	21
Bankstown	18	4	0	14	25	73	-48	12
Manly	18	3	1	14	23	59	-36	10

6th Grade (SL2)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde HH	18	15	1	2	68	30	38	46
Sutherland	18	15	0	3	72	27	45	45
St George/Rand	18	11	2	5	67	51	16	35
Monterey SL2	18	10	1	7	40	35	5	31
Sydney Uni	18	9	1	8	40	30	10	28
Easts	18	5	1	12	42	46	-4	16
Moorebank	18	1	2	15	13	78	-65	5
Liverpool								
Glebe	18	0	4	14	15	60	-45	4

7th Grade (SL3)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde HH	18	15	2	1	81	23	58	47
St George/Rand	18	14	1	3	58	30	28	43
Macquarie Uni	18	10	3	5	52	25	27	33
Briars6	18	10	2	6	38	31	7	32
Bentstix	18	7	3	8	31	37	-6	24
UTS	18	7	2	9	40	40	0	23
NWS	18	7	2	9	38	38	0	23
Baulkham Hills	18	4	5	8	27	57	-30	20
Sydney Uni	18	4	2	12	22	52	-30	14
UNSW	18	1	0	17	16	70	-54	3



8th Grade (SL4)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde HH	18	18	0	0	86	8	78	54
Briars7	18	14	1	3	61	36	25	43
Sutherland	18	11	1	6	48	30	18	34
UTS	18	8	2	8	37	37	0	26
Baulkham Hills	18	5	0	13	21	48	-27	15
St George/Rand	18	5	0	13	27	62	-35	15
Bankstown	18	3	3	12	27	49	-22	12
GNS	18	3	3	12	18	55	-37	12

9th Grade (SL5)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Monterey SL5	18	16	0	2	69	28	41	48
Ryde HH	18	14	2	2	43	17	26	44
UNSW	18	10	1	7	39	25	14	31
Manly	18	7	4	7	17	26	-9	25
Sutherland	18	6	4	8	20	25	-5	22
NWS	18	5	1	11	28	45	-17	19
Sydney Uni	18	5	2	11	14	33	-19	17
Bentstix	18	1	2	15	11	42	-31	5

10th Grade (SL6)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde HH	16	11	2	3	49	13	36	35
Easts	16	11	2	3	45	18	27	35
Wests	16	9	4	3	42	20	22	31
Tartans	16	8	4	4	38	26	12	28
Briars8	16	4	4	8	26	29	-3	16
Macquarie Uni	16	5	0	11	21	38	-17	15
Bentstix	16	0	0	16	7	84	-77	0



Masters League Tables

A Grade (Premier League)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	Forfeits	BYEs	For	Against	Diff.	Points
UTS 1	14	13	0	1	0	0	75	16	59	39
Ryde 1	14	9	1	4	0	0	49	29	20	28
Sydney	15	7	2	6	0	0	59	43	16	23
University 1										
Briars 1	15	6	3	6	0	0	47	40	7	21
Manly 1	15	4	0	11	0	0	38	54	-16	12
Penrith 1	15	2	0	13	0	0	12	98	-86	6

B Grade (Sydney Cup)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	Forfeits	BYEs	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Gordon North Sydney 1	15	8	3	4	0	0	45	30	15	27
Ryde 2	15	7	4	4	0	0	48	33	15	25
Macarthur 1	15	8	1	6	0	0	43	39	4	25
UTS 2	15	7	1	7	0	0	45	47	-2	22
Sydney University 2	15	4	5	6	0	0	29	32	-3	17
Barbarians	15	3	2	10	0	0	22	51	-29	11

C Grade (Masters)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	Forfeits	BYEs	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde 3	12	8	2	2	0	0	37	16	21	26
Sutherland 1	12	8	2	2	0	0	33	15	18	26
Northern Districts	12	8	2	2	0	0	25	14	11	26
Macarthur 2	12	4	3	5	0	0	18	19	-1	15
Sydney University 3	12	2	4	6	0	0	18	28	-10	10
Manly 2	12	2	3	7	0	0	16	27	-11	9
Penrith 2	12	2	0	10	0	0	15	43	-28	6

D Grade (Legends)

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	Forfeits	BYEs	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Easts	13	10	2	1	0	0	32	5	27	32
Ryde 4	13	7	2	4	0	0	16	9	7	23
Northside	13	7	0	6	0	0	26	17	9	21
Briars 2	13	5	4	4	0	0	17	16	1	19
Sutherland 2	13	5	1	7	0	0	17	19	-2	16
Sydney University 4	13	5	0	8	0	0	14	18	-4	15
Macarthur 3	13	3	4	6	0	0	8	21	-13	13
Northern Districts 2	13	3	1	9	0	0	11	36	-25	10



Juniors' League Tables

U11A

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
Manly Geckos	15	13	0	2	0	106	18	88	56
Ryde Panthers	15	12	2	1	0	103	19	84	52
GNS 1's	15	7	6	2	0	50	49	1	38
ND Gold	15	7	7	1	0	60	51	9	37
Briars	15	2	13	0	0	23	104	-81	20
Ryde Tigers	15	1	14	0	0	11	112	-101	18

U11B

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
BH Gold	15	13	1	1	0	77	17	60	55
Manly Kangas	15	11	3	1	0	81	33	48	49
Mosman	15	8	5	2	0	63	40	23	40
KL-UTS	15	6	8	1	0	39	57	-18	34
ND Green	15	3	11	1	0	31	74	-43	25
Ryde Lions	15	1	14	0	0	21	91	-70	18

UllC

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
BH Red	15	14	1	0	0	61	4	57	57
KL-UTS	15	8	3	4	0	36	16	20	43
Briars	15	8	7	0	0	23	33	-10	39
ND Blue	15	5	9	1	0	24	46	-22	31
GNS 2's	15	4	9	2	0	23	26	-3	29
Ryde Jaguars	15	2	12	1	0	16	58	-42	22

U13A

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
Ryde Panthers	13	12	0	1	1	77	7	70	52
GNS 1's	14	11	3	0	0	59	16	43	47
Briars	14	10	3	1	0	66	20	46	45
Mosman	14	8	5	1	0	49	21	28	39

U13B

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
ND Gold	16	10	5	1	0	51	31	20	47
Manly Red	16	8	6	2	0	50	41	9	42
GNS 2's	16	6	8	2	0	19	36	-17	35
BH Gold	16	3	10	3	0	11	65	-54	28
ND Green	16	1	14	1	0	5	68	-63	19
Manly Green	15	1	14	0	1	3	72	-69	18



U13C

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
BH Red	14	9	1	4	1	41	9	32	47
Ryde Tigers	13	9	3	1	1	41	18	23	44
Briars	15	9	4	2	0	35	24	11	44
GNS 3's	13	6	6	1	1	30	19	11	33
KL-UTS	13	3	8	2	2	17	30	-13	28
ND Blue	14	2	8	4	1	13	39	-26	26
Ryde Lions	13	1	11	1	2	5	56	-51	21

U15A

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
Briars	15	13	0	2	0	67	5	62	41
Sutherland	15	10	3	2	0	67	13	54	32
Ryde	15	9	5	1	0	50	26	24	28
ND	15	7	7	1	0	39	30	9	22
Manly/GNS	15	3	12	0	0	20	73	-53	9
Mosman/UTS	15	0	15	0	0	3	99	-96	0

U15B

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
Ryde Tigers	13	11	1	1	0	58	6	52	47
Manly	13	8	0	5	0	34	6	28	42
ND Blue	13	6	5	2	0	21	14	7	33
GNS 2's	13	5	6	2	0	22	27	-5	30
Mosman-UTS	13	2	9	2	0	13	51	-38	21
ND Green	13	1	12	0	0	8	52	-44	14

U15C

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
Ryde Lions	12	10	1	1	2	69	8	61	47
Briars	12	8	2	2	2	37	12	25	42
BH Gold	12	8	3	1	2	29	21	8	41
Ryde Jaguars	12	7	5	0	2	24	26	-2	37
GNS 3's	12	2	9	1	2	11	45	-34	23
ND White	12	1	8	3	2	15	44	-29	22
KL-UTS-SU	12	1	9	2	2	4	33	-29	21

U17A

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
Sutherland	15	13	1	1	0	81	19	62	40
Ryde	15	8	4	3	0	54	24	30	27
Glebe	15	8	5	2	0	37	26	11	26
ND	15	7	7	1	0	39	31	8	22
Briars	15	5	9	1	0	31	50	-19	16
GNS	15	0	15	0	0	9	101	-92	0



U17B

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
Ryde Tigers	13	13	0	0	1	78	2	76	54
Manly Green	13	9	4	0	0	50	28	22	40
Manly Red	13	7	5	1	0	40	43	-3	35
KL-UTS	13	5	8	0	0	13	35	-22	28
BH Gold	13	2	9	2	0	11	41	-30	21
ND Green	13	1	11	1	0	10	53	-43	15

U17C

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
Ryde Lions	13	13	0	0	0	69	6	63	52
ND White	13	5	6	2	0	30	32	-2	30
GNS 2's	13	4	8	1	0	16	56	-40	26
Briars	13	1	9	3	0	12	33	-21	19



Men's Records

						(Game	s Play	/ed											Go	als											B&F					
		Bfwd	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М	Т	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М	Т	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М
AKHURST	Joshua	7								5	12		1	24								2	1			3										1	П
AKRAM	Мо	70											8	78																						1	1
ALEXANDER	David	79											13	92																							
AMAT	Amauri	393						15					8	416	5					9					2	11						4				1	2
APPLEBY	Greg	151											15	166	;										2	2											
APPLEBY	Bryan	111											14	_	_																					1	
ARNOLD	Nathan	257		6										263	3													4								1	
ARTHUR	Kieron	41	18											59	16											16	11									1	
ATKINSON	Timothy	16							3	15				34								12				12							2	9		1	
AUSTIN	Roger	12									12	2		26									1			1											
BALDOCK	David	118											11	129)																						2
BAXTER	Samuel	30							1	1	17			49																					4	1	
BEATON	Kevin	69											14	83											3	3										1	
BEATTY	Benjamin	42						12	1					55						2						2						3				1	
BEDFORD	Chris	48							2	17				67																				9		1	
BESANVALLE	Steven	200			1	1	19	2						223	3		1			1						2					4						
BLACKBURN	Eric	14										15		29																						2	
BLACKBURN	lan											16		16										2		2										4	
BLACKBURN	Joseph	27		2	7	20								56																14						1	
BRAID	Sam	52				4	19						11	86				1	7							8					10					1	3
BRAND	Timothy	75	3											78	5											5	3									1	
BRETTELL	Thom as	49								15				64								6				6								3		1	
BROWN	Tom	18	15											33	2											2	8										
BROWN	Jacob	19							2	11	4	5		41																				1	5	2	
BROWN	Cam	281	17											298	6											6	2										
BRUML	Tomek		12	17										29		7										7	4	24									
BUCKHAM	Peter	325											15	340)																						16
BURMAN	Luca	32							3					35																							
BURNS	Stephen	203							20					223	3																		22				
BURTON	Matt				1	1	16						9	27																	3						
BUTLER	Sebastien	23			13	12	2							50			2	6								8			6	8							
CALLEJA	Charles	728									18		13	759)								4			4									17		2
CALLEJA	Matt	59		20										79		1										1		2									
CAMPBELL	Tim	106								13				119)																			2			
CAMPBELL	Ken	678							16				16	710)						1					1											1
CAMPEY	Ben	91	1	7	2									101		3	4									7			6								
CANNON	Charles	2				2								4																							
CASTENSEN	Glen	424			1			2	13	1			12	453	3					1	9					10											
CATON	Anthony	247			1	1							15	264	ı			2							3	5			1								7
CHADHA	Sonny								1		1	1		3																						1	

						(Game	s Play	/ed											Go	als											B&F					
		Bfwd	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М	Т	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М	Т	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М
COLEMAN	Christopher	22	19											41	8			-								8	4							_			
COLLIER	Timothy	305			3	3								311				3								3										1	
COOMBS	Steven	44				1	20	6						71					2							2					12	6					
COPE	Lachlan	2	2	14										18		3										3		10									
CORK	Damien	87					20						10	117					6						1	7					5						
CRAIG	Benjamin	168	11											179	2											2	19										
CRAWFORD	Taylor	11										14		25										2		2										4	
CROTTY	Owen	395				1	20							416					1							1					10						
CULEY	Christopher	15		12	6									33			3									3			2								
CULLEN	Jack	114		3	20									137		1	20									21			12								
CULLEN	John	697							13				15	725							5				6	11							15				
DAHL	Micheal									2	15	4		21																					2		
DAVENPORT	Geoff	149											12	161											2	2											9
DAWSON	Tobias					16								16				3								3				1							
DENSON	Brodie	90	2	20										112													2	21									
DILLON	Michael	27	12	2										41	4	1										5											
DILLON	Hayden	22	11											33	1											1	9										
DOBBIN	Shaun	245		2	17									264			2									2			16								
DUGGAN	Andrew	47					1	3	13	6	2		10	82																			2		2		
DUNN	Steve	602											13	615											10	10											
DUNN	Matthew	71		15	19									105		1	2									3		1	5								
EDWARDS	Mathew	50				3	17	3						73					2							2					2	1					
EDWARDS	Nic	83					3	12						98					2	5						7						1					
EGGER	Robert	482							17				13	512							10				6	16							4				
EGGERS	Mark	227						17	3				16	263						9	2				7	18						4	1				4
ELLIS	Mark	233				5	15						14	267				1	8						2	11					10						9
ENGLISH	Michael	198		1	2	1								202																2							
FAMILTON	Scott	637							6				15	658																			7				
FARQUHARSON	Stuart	365		1				17	2				19	404						1					4	5						3					
FARQUHARSON	Bruce	68		6	19									93		2	5									7		1									
FARRELL	Russell	141			2	21							16	180				2								2			2	7							9
FINDLEY	Greg	271											1	272																							
FLETCHER	Luke	17							10					27																			1				
FOLEY	James	40									17		12	69									3		1	4									6		5
FREED	lwan	22		12	12									46		1	3									4		3	7								
GARDNER	David							13	12					25						2	8					10						1	11				
GIAQUINTO	Steve	553											11	564											1	1											6
GILL	Manjit	64							19				3	86							9					9							6				
GRAHAM	Stephen	91											14	105																							
GRAY	Samuel	59	12											71	1											1	4										
GREAVES	Mark	548				1	19						10	578					22						2	24					21						4
GRIFFITH	Andrew	13		1	14	2								30															1	3							
HANNA	Neyif	70								3	4	18		95								1	1	15		17										5	
HARRISON	Reghyn	72		15	13									100		4	2									6		2	1								



						(Game	s Play	/ed											Go	oals											B&F					
		Bfwd	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М	Т	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	M	Т	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М
HAYNES	Andy	395								3			13	411								1			1	2										\Box	13
HITCHCOCK	Liam							5	15	10	1			31							9	13				22							5	11	2		
HUNTER	Alex					3	17							20																	4						
JOHNSON	Alexander								1	15				16							1					1								8			
JOHNSON	Mark					3	2						15	20				1	1						4	6				1							
JONES	Alex	128	5	9									14	156		7									14	21		17									26
JOSLIN	Rex	120											12	132																							1
KENNEDY	Laurence					21	3							24																7							
KENNEDY	Alexander	34				2	18	1						55					7							7					4						l
KEOGH	Riley	69		3	11	8	1							92															6	3	2						
KEOGH	Darcy	59		12										71		2										2		1									
KOONER	Tinku											14		14																						5	
KOONER	Josh											1		1																						3	
KREKELS	Jelle		1	10										11		1										1		11									
KRUGER	Koos	155											13	168																							3
LAVERY	Brendan	88									17		13	118									2		3	5									2		3
LAVERY	Dylan	57	5	18										80	1	2										3		3									
LEAR	James	295					4	17					15	331					1	11						12						4					1
LEONG	Sean	10								2			9	21								1			3	4											6
LI	Kevin	236								18				254								5				5								9			
LIDBETTER	Daniel	60				16								76																7							
LILES	Samuel	73	12											85	3											3	7										
LUCAS	Scott	16									10	13		39																						1	1
LYNCH	Michael	95											12	107											1	1											1
MACDONALD	Scott								1	18			10	29								12			1	13								16			2
MADYCKI	Scott	84						3	13	3				103						1	7	1				9							10				
MALTMAN	James	79		11	10	2							17	119			2	1							5	8			7	1							9
MARTHICK	Kerry	422											5	427											3	3											
MCCOY	Rohan	169											16	185											5	5											
MCCOY	Simon	104											14	118																							
MCEWEN	Nicolas	192	15											207	6											6	16										
MCKAY	Matthew	624			6	16								646				4								4			4	13							
MCKAY	Lachlan	74	2	11	2	9								98		1		8								9				8							
MERCHANT	Dean	241								16				257																				4			
MERCHANT	Greg	741											11	752											3	3											2
METCALFE	Tim	150						5		1			5	161																							
MIGUEL	Manuel De									11				11																							
MILLER	Simon												14	14																							
MOHEN	Frank	154											11	165																							3
MOORE	Declan	166		10	12									188															4								
MURUGAN	Prashant					13								13				6								6											
NAQVI	Kamal							11					9	20						9					10	19						10				\Box	
NAQVI	Amaan							12						12						3						3						16				П	
NEWSON	Graham	22											13	35																						\Box	9



							Gam	nes Pla	ayed											G	oals											B&F					
		Bfwd	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М	Т	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М	Т	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М
NICHOLL	Kenneth	265									16		13	294									4		4	8									6		3
NICHOLSON	Kieran	163			2	22	1						16	204				3								3				5							2
NIELSEN	Alan	76								2	5	12		95										4		4									1	4	
O'SHEA	Liam	35						7	14	1				57						2	10					12							2			i	
OAKES	Alistair	140				8	1							149				4	1							5					2						
OPPEDISANO	Andre	41									14	5		60																					4	ī	
PARKER	Andrew	126											12	138											3	3										ī	6
PARKES	Bradley	988								2	18		14	1022								2	17		3	22								1	11		
PEARCE	Glen	21								1			13	35											7	7										i	4
PEREIRA	Lachlan			5	12									17			1									1			1							ī	
PEREIRA	Aaron	40		1					1					42																							
PERRY	Alexander	19						8	8					35							3					3						2	1			ī	
PHAM	Blaze	21					3	15						39						3						3						13					
PICKERING	Jack		19	1										20	10											10	9										
PULKER	Jonathan			4	11	1								16		2										2		3	14	3							
RAHME	Matthew	134								2	2	18		156																						4	
RAMSAY	Andrew	732						17	1					750						2						2											
REILLY	Stephen	536								1	11		15	563											2	2									10		5
RETFORD	Alan	469		19	1								12	501											1	1		16	2								14
RETFORD	Philip	1053									14		10	1077																					7		8
RICHARD	Mark	424							2	18			16	460							1	6			8	15								1		ī	10
RICHARD	Chris	15							1	15				31								1				1											
RICKARD	Jackson								1	13				14								10				10								15		ī	
ROGERS	Keith	12											1	13																							
RUSHTON	Nicholas									1	1	10		12								1		10		11									2	9	
RUSSELL	Declan	69		5	5									79		3										3			3								
SANDERSON	Trevor					5	19							24				1	10							11				2	13					ī	
SANDERSON	Bruce	43										15		58																						2	
SANDHU	Kireth	70		20	3									93		1										1											
SCHAEFER	Ryan				8	14	1							23																7							
SCOTT	Aaron	167										16	14	197										4	6	10										11	11
SCOTT	Joel	76							18					94							2					2							9				
SHARP	Lachlan	92	4											96	2											2	3									ī	
SHAW	Alex	74	6	18								l		98	1	12				1						13		10				l					
SHAW	Billy	99	3											102																							
SHEHATA	Hani										6	15		21										2		2										7	\Box
SIAN	Milan	4						5	12	1				22							1					1						1	6	1		\Box	\neg
SIAN	Raj								3	2		l		5						1												l					
SIAN	Teaj	31							8				10	49																							6
SINGH	Mannu	64				4	19							87					1							1				1	4						
SINGH	Shamsher	45		11										56		3					1					3										\Box	
SINGH	Gurwinder	79							1				4	84																							$\neg \neg$



						G	ames	s Play	red											Go	als											B&F					
		Bfwd	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М	Т	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М	Т	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	М
SINGH	Ranjit			3	4	14								21		1	3	19								23				11							
SINGH	Gurpreet	37				12								49				3								3											
SIQUEIRA	Roy	130											9	139											2	2											9
SNEESBY	Michael	279	17											296													6										
SOUTHGATE	Ryan	172					4	18						194						5						5						12					
STEPHENS	James	142	17	2										161	7											7	1	1									
STUDD	Mark	425					2	13	5				29	474																	1	6					8
TAN	Simon	1							2	17				20							2	18				20								17			
TAPSON	Brett	16				1	13							30					7							7											
TAYLOR	Duncan	97											3	100											1	1											
TAYLOR	Andrew							16						16						1						1						5					
THIOLON	Renaud			2										2																							
THOMAS	Luca										1	12		13																						3	
THOMPSON-BLAIR	Michael	300									18		14	332									3		8	11									2		2
TOHU	Robert	81			11	11								103			1	1								2				2							
TORRES	Ramiro	224											1	225																							
UNGER	Tim	53											12	65																							8
VERMA	Mukesh											16		16										1		1										2	
VOSS	Tom	56				16								72				3								3											
WARTON	Benjamin	39						1	15	1				56																							
WELSMAN	Philip	781									17			798																					2		
WELSMAN	Luke	70									19	2		91									9	1		10									14	2	
WHELAN	Robert	252						16	3				15	286						1	3				2	6						4					
WHITTAKER	Cody	69	6	1										76														2									
WHITTING	Matthew	76											8	84											1	1											
WICKS	Justin	28											16	44											1	1											
WILLIAMS	Rhys	15		3	12	4								34															3	6							
WILLIAMSON	Carlin									12	1			13								2				2								1			
WILLSON-JONES	Benjamin	73			12	12	2							99															4	2	1						
WITCOMBE	Nik	55										17	12	84										1		1										3	4
WOODS	Stephen										2	8		10										2		2											
WOODS	Rory					1			1		2	8		12										3		3									3	11	
WRIGHT	Andrew	304	19											323	1											1											



Women's Records

2018				(GAMES	S							GO	ALS						BEST	AND F	AIRES	Γ	
Name	Bfwd	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	Total	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	Total	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th
ARMSTRONG M	12	0	0	0	0	0	15	0	27	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	21.5	0
BASHEER E	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1.5	0	0	0
BATTEN K	67	3	17	0	0	0	0	0	87	0	10	0	0	0	0	0	10	0	12	0	0	0	0	0
BENSON S	60	0	0	0	0	0	5	14	79	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	15
BLAMEY M	70	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	82	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	2	0	0	0	0	0	0
BRAMMELL E	27	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	43	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	15	0	0
BRAUDE A	0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BRUNTON L	16	0	0	0	4	12	0	0	32	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	1	0	0
CADE K	26	0	0	1	0	14	0	0	41	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	5	0	0
CADE R	0	0	0	1	15	2	0	0	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CADET	16	0	0	16	0	0	0	0	32	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CADORIN I	74	0	0	15	0	0	0	0	89	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	4	0	0	0	0
CAMPEY E	55	8	14	0	0	0	0	0	77	3	4	0	0	0	0	0	7	2	10	0	0	0	0	0
CARROTHERS M	0	6	12	0	0	0	0	0	18	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	4	0	0	0	0	0
COBBY A	74	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	91	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	19	0	0
COOK N	45	0	0	0	0	0	9	0	54	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
COOPER L	243	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	257	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	3	0	0	0	0
COUTTS S	77	2	11	0	0	0	0	0	90	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	8	0	0	0	0	0
DALE K	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	28	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5.5
DAWSON B	281	0	0	0	18	0	0	0	299	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	0	0
DAWSON H	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	0
DAWSON Renee	238	0	0	0	18	0	0	0	256	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	2	0	0	0
DELAVERE K	0	0	0	0	0	11	0	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DUNCAN K	220	0	0	0	0	11	12	1	244	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	5.5	0
DUNN G	109	0	0	4	9	0	0	0	122	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	2	12	0	0	0
DWYER G	174	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	191	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	4	0	0	0	0	0	0
EAGLETON H	40	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	54	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
EAGLETON K	35	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	49	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
ELLIS S	179	0	0	0	0	0	18	4	201	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	10.5	0
ERASMUS L	0	0	0	7	16	0	0	0	23	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	4	0	0	8	21.5	0	0	0
FARQUHARSON N	0	0	1	15	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	0
FAULKNER P	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	16	33	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11.83
FAWLE H	0	2	14	0	0	0	0	0	16	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	14	0	0	0	0	0
FLOKSTRA R	13	0	0	0	0	0	12	2	27	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	9	0
GAMMIE A	118	0	0	0	0	0	0	15	133	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12
GIAQUINTO M	673	0	0	0	0	0	15	0	688	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	4	0
GILLARD A	27	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	39	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0
GOODCHILD H	113	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	127	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	5	0	0
GRAHAM A	0	0	2	14	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	0	0	0	0
GRAHAM G	4	0	3	14	0	0	0	0	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	0



2018				(GAMES	S							GO	ALS						BEST	AND F	AIRES	Γ	
Name	Bfwd	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	Total	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	Total	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th
GREEN B	170	0	14	2	0	0	0	0	186	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GREEN T	149	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	163	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	9	0	0	0
GREEN Tiarna	#N/A	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	#N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GRIFFITHS T	132	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	148	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	0	0	0	0
GUERRERO C	31	0	0	0	0	0	16	1	48	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	9.5	0
HERRON T	40	0	1	10	0	0	0	0	51	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
HOFMAN A	4	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
KABLE H	11	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	25	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	13	0	0	0	0	0	0
KELLY E	330	0	0	0	0	14	1	0	345	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
KENNEDY K	212	0	0	17	0	0	0	0	229	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	0	0	0	0
KENNEDY Kate	0	0	15	1	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0
KEOGH T	1	0	0	0	0	0	4	10	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9
KERR A	35	0	0	0	0	18	0	0	53	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	7	0	0
LEET	51	0	0	0	0	0	3	14	68	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.33
LEIBSON B	60	0	13	0	0	0	0	0	73	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	0	0	0	0
LEIJER S	0	0	0	0	8	9	0	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	3	0	0
LONG J	0	0	0	0	10	0	0	0	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0
LOWE S	51	0	0	0	12	5	0	0	68	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10.5	0	0	0
MACMILLAN Z	16	0	15	0	0	0	0	0	31	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	12	0	0	0	0	0
MADIN B	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
MAISTER L	29	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	43	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MANNERS E	97	0	0	12	0	0	0	0	109	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0
MANUELJ	153	7	11	0	0	0	0	0	171	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	7	0	0	0	0	0
MARAIS C	0	0	0	0	3	17	0	1	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	13	0	0
MARTINS DE OLIVEIRA P	18	0	3	16	0	0	0	0	37	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	5	0	0	0	0
MAY L	0	0	0	4	13	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	2	6	0	0	0
MAYM	0	0	0	15	0	0	0	0	15	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	4	0	0	0	0
MCCRAITH S	38	3	14	0	0	0	0	0	55	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MCKAY M	454	0	0	0	11	0	0	0	465	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	5.5	0	0	0
MEECH A	0	7	13	1	0	0	0	0	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	6	0	0	0	0	0
MORRISON A	91	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	104	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	0	0
MURRAY S	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	16	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	10
NASH S	28	0	0	0	0	0	0	18	46	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
NEWMAN Z	56	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	66	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	0	0
NEYERTZ F	20	0	0	0	0	12	0	0	32	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	5	0	0
NICHOLL K	142	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	155	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	4	0	0	0	0	0	0
NICHOLL Karla	53	0	6	9	0	0	0	0	68	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
NOWAKOWSKI K	14	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
O'BRIEN H	14	0	2	13	0	0	0	0	29	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	0	0	0	0
O'CONNELL B	51	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	51	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
O'SULLIVAN K	25	0	0	1	0	12	0	0	38	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	8	0	0
O'SULLIVAN R	25	0	0	0	0	0	0	16	41	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
PARKER J	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	16	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	29.5



2018				(GAME	S							GO	ALS						BEST	AND F	AIRES	Γ	
Name	Bfwd	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	Total	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	Total	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th
PARKES S	118	0	12	0	0	0	0	0	130	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
PASFIELD L	156	0	0	0	1	1	18	0	176	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12.5	0
PATTERSON M	23	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	33	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	8	0	0	0	0	0	0
PICKERING L	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	16	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
POINTON T	0	0	7	7	0	0	0	0	14	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	2	0	0	0	0
PRIDDY L	133	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	149	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	4	0	0
PROSSER J	25	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	41	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
QUILTY P	662	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	678	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	0	0
REDEY P	15	0	0	0	0	0	12	1	28	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	1
RETFORD K	385	0	0	1	14	0	0	0	400	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0
RILEY L	0	10	12	0	0	0	0	0	22	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	0	0
ROBBIE A	125	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	142	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	9	0	0	0
SANO C	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	22	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SCHUTZ L	51	0	0	0	0	0	0	18	69	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1.5
SPRANGERS M	58	0	0	0	0	18	0	0	76	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	8	0	0
STARKEY L	62	0	6	12	0	0	0	0	80	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	0	0	0	0
TATE R	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
TATE S	85	0	0	0	0	0	1	12	98	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
THORNTON E	0	0	0	2	15	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0
THORPE K	0	0	0	0	0	0	13	0	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
TINKER Z	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	15	28	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
VAN DER POLS B	13	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	28	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	19	0	0	0	0	0	0
VINKOVIC A	48	0	0	0	0	0	18	0	66	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	7	0	0	0	0	0	14.5	0
WADDELL E	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	16	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	3	0	0	0	0	0	0
WALSH J	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WALTON K	103	0	1	1	14	0	11	0	130	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10.5	0	12	0
WARTON N	26	0	0	0	0	0	12	2	40	0	0	0	0	0	2	1	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WELLSMAN C	77	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	88	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
WILSON A	14	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	27	25	0	0	0	0	0	0	25	12	0	0	0	0	0	0
WILSON L	27	0	0	0	12	1	0	0	40	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	4.5	3	0	0
WOODS M	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WOOLLEY A	0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0
WOOTTON L	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1.33
WYKER F	0	0	0	0	0	7	7	0	14	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1	0
WYNN-TAYLOR S	39	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	55	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	15	0	0	0	0	0	0
YOUNG G	0	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	6	0	0	0	0	0	0

